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C H A N G E

People are the backbone of any organization. That has never been more true
than at the U.S. Government Printing Office where the employees are
among the most loyal and dedicated public servants in the Federal Government.
In the GPO’s 2005 Annual Report you will learn the details of our amazing
and progressive transformation underway through the eyes of the employees
who are at the heart of the transition from an analog to a digital world.
It is through the Voices of Change that you will experience how the GPO’s

Strategic Vision is unfolding in every major part of our business, operations,
technology, and outreach units where we are now more productive, efficient,
and effective than ever before.
We present to you the Voices of Change — a look at the implementation
of the GPO’s Strategic Vision through the eyes of the people who are making
it a reality — the men and women of the GPO.
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from the Public Printer

Since my appointment as Public Printer,

equipped to meet our future needs —

we invested in a variety of new color

opportunities. Late in the year we

all of us at the Government Printing

will be carried out and funded. During

and digital production technologies.

submitted a plan to Congress for a

Ofﬁce — employees and managers

the year we made signiﬁcant progress in

We augmented our expert printing

voluntary separation incentive program

alike — have been transforming the

each of these directions.

procurement services for Federal

to generate additional cost savings,

agencies by awarding an innovative new

which will be dedicated to investment in
retraining.

The core of our future operations

venerable agency into a 21st century

“Our goal is to provide
Government information
in the form and formats
our customers want and
need in this burgeoning
digital era...”

digital platform capable of addressing

will revolve around a digital content

convenience duplicating and printing

ongoing technological changes in

system designed to organize, manage,

contract. We also signiﬁcantly increased

how information is processed and

and output authenticated content for

the dollar limit on popular simpliﬁed

to the Government Performance and

disseminated. Our goal is to provide

any use or purpose. During the year we

purchase agreements, expanding the

Results Act (GPRA), we take the spirit

Government information in the form

secured the majority of the funds we

ability of Federal agencies to procure

and intent of its provisions seriously,

and formats our customers want and

will need for this project. We also began

products and services directly from lists

particularly its emphasis on performance

need in this burgeoning digital era, and

outreach to key elements of our customer

of pre-qualiﬁed vendors without ﬁrst

measurement. During the year we

to ensure that the abiding mission of

community on our plan and, at year

going through GPO.

worked to design systems to provide

the GPO — Keeping America Informed

end, conducted an Industry Day event to

— continues to be carried out for

solicit advice and information on vendor

area, we developed a plan to partner with

the progress of our strategic and

generations to come.

capabilities to help develop the system.

a private sector sales and distribution

management initiatives.

One of our ﬁrst orders of business

quantitative measurement in evaluating

Progress toward our goal to relocate

provider who will expand Government

was to restore the GPO’s ﬁnancial health.

Security and Intelligent Documents that

publications sales offerings to the

the GPO to new facilities moved ahead

I am pleased to report that net income

consolidates our longstanding expertise

public while returning a portion of the

in FY 2005 with the delivery of a formal

from consolidated operations for Fiscal

in security documents and offers a

revenues to the GPO. We also engaged

plan for this project by our expert real

Year 2005 improved to $6.1 million from

broad range of consultative services to

the depository library community in a

estate advisory ﬁrm. The plan, along with

$1.3 million the year before, reversing

Federal agencies responding to new

dialog to deﬁne the future of the Federal

draft legislative language to authorize

the previous pattern of ﬁnancial losses.

standards and statutory requirements in

Depository Library Program while

the project, was submitted to our

We also recorded a reduction to our

this area. An early product of the unit

continuing to move the Program toward

oversight and appropriations committees

long-term liability for the Federal

was the security printing requested by

a predominantly electronic basis as

accompanied by legislative brieﬁngs. We

workers’ compensation program.

the Joint Congressional Committee on

required by Congress. The total number

also began work on a plan to establish

the Inauguration to support the ﬁrst

of titles we now make available on GPO

an ancillary production site for passports

in our transformation efforts with the

Presidential inaugural ceremonies since

Access increased to more than 300,000,

and other essential Government

release early in the year of our Strategic

9/11. We also created a new Digital

with an average of 35 million retrieved

documents.

Vision for the 21st Century. This document

Media Services business line to provide

every month.

provides a framework for how our

essential retraining in digital production

transformation goals — development

skills and generate content from legacy

replace a number of labor intensive

transformational goals in FY 2005. In

of a future digital system to anchor all

documents for eventual ingest to our

accounting and inventory functions with

the pages that follow is the story of our

future operations, reorganization of the

digital content system.

IT solutions, reducing cost and speeding

efforts as seen through the eyes of the

work throughput. Expanded employee

dedicated men and women who work

FY 2005 marked a turning point

agency into new product- and service-

2

We created a new business line for

In our Information Dissemination

Although the GPO is not subject

We endowed other business lines

Our Oracle enterprise system will

The GPO made a number of
signiﬁcant strides forward toward our

oriented business lines along with

with new capabilities. To improve plant

training opportunities were also made

here. To them goes the credit for setting

investment in the necessary technologies,

production efﬁciency and broaden the

available, ranging from new offerings

the GPO on a new course that will well

adoption of management best practices

range of product and service options

on the shop ﬂoor to “transformational

serve our stakeholders in Congress,

agency-wide including retraining to

for Congress and Federal agencies,

leadership” seminars for all supervisors

Federal agencies, the library community,

provide needed skills, and relocation of

and managers. Our Digital Conversion

and the public for decades to come.

the GPO to facilities that are sized and

System will provide new retraining
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people

The people of the GPO have
what it takes to propel a 150year-old agency from a printcentric operation to a digital
powerhouse. Today, the GPO’s
workforce is made up of a

Workforce Development has also

Taking a Government agency
that dates back to 1861 into the era of

purchased a limited number of licenses

online data and new technology calls

to pilot test another online e-learning

for investing in training opportunities,

tool that provides access to a vast range

and 2005 was a key year for new

of e-learning and performance support

beginnings and new ways of doing

resources including interactive courses,

things at the GPO.

learning simulations, and digitized

From employees to managers, and
from supervisors to executives, virtually

content of the latest and best business

initiatives in the plant’s Press Division

and technical books.

was to increase training opportunities

Supervisors are taking not only

everyone at the GPO underwent some

for all employees. The Press Division,

unique blend of long-time

the mandatory classes, but are signing

along with Workforce Development, has

Workforce Development Ofﬁce launched

up for the optional supervisor courses

purchased a PC-based training program

GPO employees and those

new educational programs that all

that are available. Meanwhile, employees

designed to enhance the skill level of

supervisors and managers were required

are taking computer-related classes,

press operators and apprentices.

to complete. One was an e-learning

safety instruction, and quality control

Also established this year was a

segment and the other was a ﬁve-day

and troubleshooting courses in greater

Plant and Apprentice Training Initiative

transformational leadership course.

numbers.

Program designed to identify the future

from the private sector, sister

needs of plant operations and establish

Government agencies, and

the appropriate skills training for the

right out of college. That mix
of talent, drive, and skill has
reconﬁgured the agency’s
dynamics and has brought
about a renewed energy
and spirit that has spread
throughout the GPO.

“Working in Workforce Development has given me the opportunity to dialogue
with fellow GPO employees while focusing on changes in our Plant Operations
through the Plant and Apprentice Training initiative. I have found this
experience rewarding as we move towards transitioning the Plant Operations

4

One of GPO’s transformation

type of training in the past year. GPO’s

who have recently joined us

workforce to the digital era.”

TIMOTHY BURKE,
Head Offset Pressperson

“Advanced training within the
Press Division is an essential part
of GPO’s future.”

IVINA POWELL, Printing Specialist

United States Government Printing Office Annual Report 2005

BYRON ZIMMERMAN, IT Specialist

“I am currently beta testing
the latest advancement in
communication technology
for the Deaf at the GPO.
The videophone enables me to
communicate at a rate of about
200 words per minute as opposed
to 50 wpm with my TTY.
This natural communication
allows me to forge bonds with
my co-workers, technicians
and clients. It also enables me
to develop a rapport with my
customers. The best thing about
the videophone is that I am no
longer bound by intimidating
and archaic protocols that limit
my communication and I am
empowered by being able to
speak naturally and free.”

United States Government Printing Office Annual Report 2005

workforce in Plant Operations.
Training wasn’t the only focus of our
investment in employees this year. A new
Goal Sharing Program was implemented
in 2005 that gives employees the
opportunity to make a positive difference
in the GPO and earn a cash refund at
the same time. The program is designed
to be a long-term effort based on cost
savings. It involves all GPO employees
in setting resource-saving goals and will
reward employees if the agency achieves
or exceeds those goals.
A panel discussion on “Your Path
to Excellence” was also conducted to
allow GPO employees the opportunity to
discuss strategies that were beneﬁcial to
them in achieving career objectives. The
purpose of this panel provides employees
with information that they use for
making career decisions as the agency
transforms itself into a 21st century
operation.
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business

From the training classrooms
to speaking face-to-face with
our customers, the GPO is
reinventing itself and putting
our customers ﬁrst.
To that end, the GPO’s
Customer Services has made

JOANN SHARP, Printing Services Specialist

“GPO has given me the
opportunity to work on many
exciting projects to help
fulﬁll the agency’s Strategic
Vision, one of them being
the Convenience Printing
Contract. The Convenience
Printing Contract will give our
customers choices they never
had before.”

two noteworthy changes that
will make doing business with
the GPO that much easier and
faster for our Federal agency
customers.

The GPO has awarded a new,
nationwide convenience printing
contract that provides comprehensive
service for our Federal customers through
a nationwide network of local convenience printing outlets. This helps fulﬁll
our Strategic Vision goal of providing our
customers with greater choices

“GPO’s Simplified Purchase Agreement
provides our customers with flexibility
they can use to get the products they
need.”

B R I A N C O L E M A N , A g e n c y P u b l i shing Specialist

in how they acquire printed products
and services.
In response to requests from our
agency customers, and as planned in the
Strategic Vision, GPO has increased the
limit on Simpliﬁed Purchase Agreements
(SPA) from $2,500 to $10,000. The SPA
is an optional, self-service acquisition
program the GPO offers to agency
customers. It is a schedule of printing
and graphic services with pre-competed
vendors that our customers may access
directly, minimizing their administrative
procedures.

66

United
United States
States Government
Government Printing
Printing Office
Office Annual
Annual Report
Report 2005
2005

“Finally, we, at
the Government
Printing Ofﬁce, have
been marked with a
new organizational
culture. This culture
encourages continuous
innovation, change,
and improvement!
I’m excited about the
changes going on at the
GPO. I have worked on
numerous projects over
the past year, and these
projects have given
me a sense of pride
and an opportunity to
contribute to the overall
mission and strategic
vision of the GPO.”

United States Government Printing Office Annual Report 2005

LEKE ITH STAN CIL,
Fin an ci al Da ta An al yst
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technology
“GPO is transforming from an ink-and-paper operation to a highly
capable and secure multi-media digital dissemination environment.”
New and emerging

directly to the GPO Sales Program and
is available 24 hours a day, seven days

entire inventory process — ordering,

a week, including holidays. This system

procurement, receiving/inspection,

processes GPO credit card remittances in

inventory, internal distribution, and

real-time, ensuring monies are deposited

vendor payment. This new electronic,

the GPO for the better, helping

within GPO accounts as soon as these

paperless inventory control work process

transactions are completed online.

allows for better reporting, increased

provide our customers — the

But that’s not all: to further improve

efﬁciencies and productivity, and better

the Online Bookstore, additional

inventory management.

technologies are changing
the way we do business at

public, agencies, Congress,

JOE GALINDO, IT Specialist

services will be completed shortly to
process international orders online in

our library partners — the
products and services they
need quickly and effectively.
As you are about to learn, the

addition to allowing our customers the
The GPO has received approval

convenience to expedite their shipments

from the Appropriations Committees

via USPS Priority and Express Mail. These

to reprogram millions of dollars in

changes are ensuring we are meeting new

unexpended balances of prior year

customer needs and providing world-

appropriations for the Future Digital

class service to our customers.
The GPO is also establishing

GPO has made tremendous

System (FDsys). This milestone means
that we now have most of the funds

a Public Key Infrastructure (PKI) to

strides in embracing new

available to build a world-class system

authenticate electronic Government

that will ingest, preserve, and provide

documents it provides to the public.

permanent public access to information

A PKI is a secure method to transfer

published by all branches of the

electronic information. PKIs are used to

Government. GPO’s Ofﬁce of Innovation

secure various electronic activities such

and New Technology is moving full

as e-commerce and e-mail transactions.

steam ahead with the project and is now

The GPO will “stamp” authentic

in the implementation planning phase of

documents with a mark that users will

the Future Digital System.

recognize. When users see this digital

technologies throughout our
entire operation.

Members of the Information
Dissemination staff have reinvented

is authentic. This is the ﬁrst step
toward authenticating future electronic

analyzing how public key infrastructures and digital

changing technology and improve our

documents.

signature technologies can be used to authenticate

service by integrating Pay.gov into the

PKI — if that sounds like we’ve been

and add GPO’s Seal of Authenticity to documents on

U.S. Government Online Bookstore.

busy this year, read on. There’s more.

Pay.gov is a secure Government-wide

L I S A L A P L A N T, L e a d P r o g r a m P l a n n e r

commitment to excellence and customer

ﬁnancial transaction portal linked

“The project management
and problem solving courses
I attended at the GPO have been
empowering factors for me and
the project team throughout the
Oracle implementation.”

mark, they will know that the document

their business to get in front of

“As part of GPO’s authentication initiative, I have been

GPO Access.”

The system tracks and manages the

Future Digital System, Pay.gov, and

We are also implementing an Oracle
Enterprise system application to replace
labor-intensive manual completion of
forms and speed up the billing process
to our customers for services provided.

8
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operations

Today’s GPO is more

“It’s great to be part of a team that develops new
and innovative ideas for getting information to the
public more efﬁciently and effectively.”

new digital color prooﬁng system will

model for a publications

decrease costs and enable the GPO to

sales and distribution

expand its services to Congress and the

operation. Vendors

agencies of Government. The four-color

will present new models

press will replace several 27-year-old,

based on their existing,

updates processes to make

one-color presses. The press will also

large-scale sales and

serve as backup to the passport press.

distribution networks

its operations run like a well-

The purchase of this new equipment

and technologies,

moves the agency one step closer to

providing the

a fully integrated digital printing and

opportunity to better

binding line. The GPO also received

market the GPO’s

efﬁcient than ever before as
it constantly identiﬁes and

oiled machine. Here are a few
examples from the past year.
The GPO has made several
investments this year that
support the section of the

approval for a new computer-to-plate

products at lower

processor. This large format platemaker

costs. The GPO wants

will replace older equipment, increase

to improve service to

efﬁciency, and allow GPO to produce

our customers, while continuing to fulﬁll

GPO with the paper needed to function.

high-resolution plates. The platemaker

its mission of Keeping America Informed

The GPO now has several options for

can make digital plates and plates with

through the sale of public documents.

paper procurement. By breaking down

Just in Time. That is the name

one large contract, we allowed bidders

Strategic Vision that calls for

high resolution for the e-passports.

building a new printing and
digital information factory.
With the approval from the Joint

The GPO is also exploring

of a new paper contract at the GPO.

to only bid on the items that they could

opportunities to outsource all or parts

Employees from several sections within

provide easily and economically.

of the sales and agency distribution

the GPO worked together to split the

The GPO’s Binding Division is

programs. The GPO is looking for

paper contract to allow for multiple

responsible for the Digital Print Center,

vendors to recommend an entirely new

vendors to work together to provide the

encompassing the production of
traditional documents to digital print-

Committee on Printing, the GPO

on-demand documents. The GPO is

“Everyone can
play a part in
helping to make
the GPO a more
efﬁciently run
agency. I think
the Goal Sharing
Program has
given us an
incentive to do so.”

procured a new color perfector
press, digital color prooﬁng
system, and several pieces
of equipment for the production
of biometric passports. The

“I’ve learned how to write the appropriate specifications
needed for GPO to procure printing and digital equipment
from the private sector.”

10
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SARAH CIESLIK, Program Planning Specialist

in the process of procuring a state-ofthe-art digital bookbinding line that
will transform the methods to produce
printed products.
Meanwhile, the new Security
and Intelligent Document Business
Unit was busy this year working with
the Department of State on the new
electronic passport. In the same vein,
the GPO also worked on a securitysensitive project when it produced the
Presidential Inauguration tickets, which
embraced countless anti-counterfeiting
technologies.

ALECIA WOODRUFF, Supply Systems Analyst

J AY A N , M e c h a n i c a l E n g i n e e r

United States
States Government
Government Printing
Printing Office
Office Annual
Annual Report
Report 2005
2005
United
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outreach

The GPO name is synonymous
with public access to
Government information. And

requests for publication prices to
complex inquiries regarding the language
contained in statutes and proposed
legislation. So far this year, the Center’s
call abandonment rate, a key measure

that was apparent this year as

of how quickly GPO responds to the

our Information Dissemination

50 percent. Other successes include 90

organization engaged in major

public, has been reduced by more than

orders from the public. The Center

initiatives to meet the needs

has also implemented a program to

of the American people in the

process for book dealers who resell

digital age.
Great progress has been
made in the GPO Customer
Contact Center. In FY 2005,
GPO’s centralized Customer

BERINE MORRISON,
Contact Center Team Leader

percent faster processing of publication

streamline and automate the ordering

“GPO has trained me to provide our customers with excellent service
in order to meet the needs of our customers quickly and accurately.”

Government publications to the public.
The National Park Service is currently
participating in a pilot program that

the public online via GPO Access. The

version. At the end of each session of

has resulted in reducing book dealer

online application, which allows users

Congress, the daily editions are collected,

order-processing time from 72 hours to

to search and browse the information, is

re-paginated, and re-indexed into a

24 hours.

a comprehensive guide to the contents

permanent, bound edition. The bound

and is an enhanced aid in tracking

edition also incorporates changes and

permanent, or bound, edition of the

legislation. The bound Congressional

additions made to the Daily Record by the

Congressional Record is now available to

Record is different from the daily

House and Senate. By eliminating the

To meet customer needs, the

need to search through print editions of

Contact Center processed

the daily Congressional Record, the online

about 232,000 incoming calls
and some 37,000 e-mails from
the public, ranging from simple

“My training in the Electronic Job Section includes reading and
reviewing materials from the U.S. Senate and the House
of Representatives. We are always ready to go to work when
Congress calls on us.”

M A R T Y T R AV E R S , P r i n t e r P r o o f r e a d e r

RON GREEN,
Journeyperson Bookbinder

“I am responsible for the
production of important
materials for the U.S.
Congress, such as the
Congressional Record,
Senate and House
calendars, bills, reports,
appropriation hearings,
and many others.
This responsibility is
a new and interesting
challenge for me every
night.”

bound edition is a vital reference tool for
researchers.
The Congressional Record was the star
of another ﬁrst at the GPO. For the ﬁrst
time ever, the GPO gave Congressional
ofﬁces the option of offering their
constituents visiting the Washington,
DC, area, the unique opportunity to tour
the place where history has been made
for 150 years. The tours were offered
during the summer and early fall and
took visitors through the journey of one
of our key publications, the Congressional
Record, as it made its way through the
GPO from the time it entered our doors
until it was disseminated online and in
print ﬁrst thing in the morning when
Congress is in session.

12
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financials

For the second year in a row, the GPO has experienced positive ﬁnancial results. GPO earned a contribution to new investment of

The GPO’s Balance Sheet continued to strengthen as a result of improved operating

The summary tables are

$6.1M in FY 2005, before other expenses, as compared to $1.3M in FY 2004. The improvement in operating performance is reﬂective

performance. Working Capital increased to $180.5M in 2005 from $176.4M in 2004 or an

excerpts from the full

of a 3.0% increase in revenue from operations coupled with focused expense control and of the beneﬁts realized by the Retirement

increase of 2.3%. Accounts receivable dropped by 28% and inventories dropped 1.8% on an

Separation Incentive Program conducted in FY 2003 and FY 2004.

overall 1.6% revenue increase.

audited consolidated

Revenue from operations increased 3.0% to $698.7M from $678.4M accompanied by a 1.8% increase in operating costs while
overall revenue increased 1.6% to $702.7M from $691.8M with less than a 1% increase in overall costs.
The GPO recorded an overall positive contribution of $9.6M in ﬁscal 2005 as compared to an overall positive contribution of

In FY 2005, the GPO recorded a $3.48M non-cash expense reduction in the estimated
cost of its future long-term workers’ compensation liability. The expected future cost at the
end of FY 2005 was $76.1M as opposed to $79.6M at the end of FY 2004.

ﬁnancial statements
and are not intended
to substitute for the
full audited ﬁnancial

$11.3M in ﬁscal 2004. It is important to note that $3.48M of the 2005 contribution and $9.9M of the FY 2004 contribution reﬂect

It is important to note that for the ﬁrst time in 3 years (FY 2002) the GPO now has

a reduction in the estimated cost of the GPO’s future long-term workers compensation liability which had been recorded in a prior

positive retained earnings. The GPO’s positive retained earnings of $1.3M includes $76.1M

statements which

ﬁscal year. The future workers’ compensation liability is an estimate that is determined each year by the Department of Labor (DOL)

of potential future year workers’ compensation expense. Excluding the reserve for this

are included in the

and is adjusted up or down based on the annual analysis by DOL’s actuary.

estimated future charge, the GPO would have positive retained earnings of $77.4M.

accompanying CD-ROM.

Summary of Revenues, Expenses, and Net Income

2005

2004

Summary Balance Sheet

2005

2004

For FY 2005, the

(in thousands)

(in thousands)

GPO received a clean

Revenues

$ 702,665

$ 691,754

audit opinion on its

Expenses

696,523

690,424

Assets
Current Assets
Fund balance with the U.S. Treasury
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories, net
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

Net Income before other operating expenses

$

Changes in long term workers’ compensation liabilities
Net Income

$

6,142

$

1,330

3,481

9,929

9,623

$ 11,259

Cash provided by operations improved by about $20.9M over FY 2004. During FY 2005, the GPO generated $22.3M from operations

Property, plant, and equipment
Total Assets

$ 206,711
104,101
9,054
3,313
$ 323,179

$ 194,018
144,589
8,898
432
$ 347,937

56,172
$ 379,351

59,198
$ 407,135

$

77,864
54,742
10,039
$ 142,645

$ 88,546
73,703
9,294
$ 171,543

76,122
$ 218,767

79,603
$ 251,146

$

($8,303)
92,879
71,413
155,989
$ 407,135

consolidated ﬁnancial
statements from an
independent auditor.

as opposed to $1.4M in FY 2004. The GPO made investments of $4.8M and committed an additional $10M toward future growth
as compared to $10.4M that was expended in FY 2004. In ﬁscal 2005, the GPO used $5.0M of cash from ﬁnancing activities
including expenditures to improve GPO Access and the Integrated Library System. This source of cash represents the activity of certain
appropriations made by Congress to the GPO. When funds are expended the appropriation reimburses the Revolving Fund.
Summary Statement of Cash Flows

2005

2004

(in thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Net Income
Provided by (used in) operating activities:
(Increase) decrease in assets
Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Workers’ compensation liability
Total adjustments
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash ﬂows from Investing Activities
Cash ﬂows (for) from Financing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Balance

14

$

9,623

$

$ 11,259

7,636
37,451
(28,902)
(3,481)
$ 12,704
$ 22,327

$

7,559
(29,203)
21,761
(9,929)
$ 9,812
$ 1,447

(4,608)
(5,026)
$ 12,693

(10,300)
(150)
($ 9,003)

United States Government Printing Office Annual Report 2005

Liabilities and Net Position
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable & accrued expenses
Deferred revenues
Accrued annual leave
Total current liabilities
Other liabilities
Workers’ Compensation Liability
Total Liabilities
Net position
Cumulative results of operations:
Retained earnings (deﬁcit)
Invested capital
Unexpended appropriations
Total Net Position
Total Liabilities and Total Net Position

United States Government Printing Office Annual Report 2005

1.320
92,879
66,385
160,584
$ 379,351
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The people of the GPO are the driving force behind the successful transition
in our business, operations, technology, and outreach. Thanks to the dedicated
workforce and teamwork of the men and women of the GPO, we are now more
productive, efficient, and effective than ever before in the agency’s long and
proud history. The story of the successful implementation of the GPO’s

Strategic Vision as seen and told by the people of the GPO is the heart of the
2005 Annual Report, so accurately named Voices of Change.

T h e GP O’s 2 0 05 A n n u a l Re p o rt Voices of Change h a s b e e n d e s ig n e d , w ri t t e n , a n d p r in t e d b y U . S . G o v e rn m e n t Pr i n t i n g O ff i c e e m p l o y e e s .

16
16

United
United States
States Government
Government Printing
Printing Office
Office Annual
Annual Report
Report 2005
2005

United States Government Printing Office Annual Report 2005

3

U. S . G O V E R N M E N T

P R I N T I N G

OF FI CE

I

F I N A N C I A L

Y E A R

I N

R E V I E W

F i s c a l Ye a r s 2 0 0 5 a n d 2 0 0 4 ( w i t h I n d e p e n d e n t A u d i t o r s ’ R e p o r t T h e r e o n )

V O I C E S

O F

C H A N G E

UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE

FY 2005 Financial Year in Review — Table of Contents

I.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) .................................................................................... 2
Mission ...............................................................................................................................................................................3
Programs and Operations .................................................................................................................................................3
Financial Results for Fiscal Year 2005...............................................................................................................................7
Performance Measures: .....................................................................................................................................................8
Operating Performance Measures.................................................................................................................................8
Financial Performance Measures ..................................................................................................................................9
Possible Future Effects of Existing Events and Conditions ........................................................................................... 10
Fiscal Year 2006 Projections............................................................................................................................................ 10

II. Independent Auditors’ Report..................................................................................................................... 12
III. Consolidated Financial Statements ............................................................................................................. 20
Consolidated Balance Sheets .......................................................................................................................................... 21
Consolidated Statements of Revenues and Expenses ....................................................................................................22
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows ........................................................................................................................23
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ............................................................................................. 24
1. Summary of Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies .............................................................................................................24
2. Fund Balance with the U.S. Treasury..........................................................................................................................29
3. Accounts Receivable ....................................................................................................................................................30
4. Inventories ...................................................................................................................................................................30
5. Property, Plant, and Equipment ................................................................................................................................ 31
6. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses ................................................................................................................... 31
7. Deferred Revenues ....................................................................................................................................................... 31
8. Workers’ Compensation Liability ...............................................................................................................................32
9. Commitments .............................................................................................................................................................33
10. Contingencies ............................................................................................................................................................33
11. Net Position ...............................................................................................................................................................34
12. Appropriated Funds ..................................................................................................................................................35
13. Employee Beneﬁt Plans.............................................................................................................................................37
14. Concentration of Credit Risk....................................................................................................................................38
15. Major Customers .......................................................................................................................................................38
16. Retirement Separation Incentive Program ...............................................................................................................38
17. Regional Operations Closings and Consolidations ................................................................................................39
18. Goal Sharing Program ..............................................................................................................................................39
IV. Consolidating and Supplemental Schedules (Unaudited) ........................................................................... 40
Consolidating Balance Sheet by Fund Type ................................................................................................................... 41
Consolidating Schedule of Revenues and Expenses by Fund Type ..............................................................................43
Consolidating Schedule of Cash Flows by Fund Type ..................................................................................................44
Supplemental Schedule of Appropriated Funds ............................................................................................................45
Supplemental Schedule of Balance Sheets for Revolving Fund ....................................................................................46
Consolidating Schedule of Income (Loss) before Other Operating Expenses by Major Program ............................ 50
Supplemental Schedule of Income (Loss) before Other Operating Expenses
for Printing and Binding Operations ........................................................................................................................52
Supplemental Schedule of Income (Loss) before Other Operating Expenses for Information Dissemination ........54

SECTION I

Management’s
Discussion
and Analysis
(Unaudited)
As of September 30, 2005

The consolidated ﬁnancial statements of the U.S. Government Printing Ofﬁce
(GPO or Agency) are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP). Under the accrual method, revenues are recognized when earned,
and expenses are recognized when a liability is incurred, without regard to the
receipt or the payment of cash. GAAP also requires that accounting principles
used be applied in a consistent manner with that of the previous year.
The consolidated ﬁnancial statements report the ﬁnancial position and the
results of operations of the Agency pursuant to the requirements of 31 U.S.C.
§ 3515(b). The consolidated ﬁnancial statements have been audited by an
independent external auditor selected by the Public Printer in accordance with
44 U.S.C. § 309(e).
The consolidated ﬁnancial statements are prepared from the GPO’s ﬁnancial management system. Transactions are recorded on the accrual basis and
are within budgetary limitations established to facilitate compliance with legal
constraints and controls over the use of Federal funds. GPO’s annual ﬁnancial
statements and accompanying notes provide information on the Agency’s ﬁnancial position, results of operations, changes in net position, and cash ﬂows,
and disclose all signiﬁcant events and economic affairs controlled by GPO, in
conformity with applicable laws, regulations, standards, and policies relevant
to ﬁnancial reporting.
GPO is committed to maintaining strong ﬁnancial systems and internal
controls to ensure accountability, integrity, and reliability. GPO’s internal controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance that obligations and costs
are in compliance with applicable laws and regulations; funds, property, and
other assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition; and transactions are properly recorded and accounted for to enable the GPO to prepare reliable ﬁnancial reports and maintain accountability
over assets.
GPO Instruction 825.18A Internal Control Program established the internal
control standards and assessment methodology employed by GPO to ensure
adequate and effective systems of management control, and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. Management regularly conducts vulnerability
assessments and internal control reviews of GPO’s programs, operations, and
other activities.
The Ofﬁce of the Inspector General (OIG) monitors the Internal Control
Program at GPO and keeps the Public Printer informed of the progress by
management. Furthermore, the OIG and the U.S. Government Accountability
Ofﬁce (GAO) conduct audits of the GPO’s programs and operations, and as
such, evaluate management controls. The Internal Control Program, along with
recommendations from these audits, have strengthened management controls
and improved the economy, efﬁciency, and effectiveness of GPO’s programs,
operations, and other activities.
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Mission
GPO has been faithfully serving the
Nation by Keeping America Informed for
over 140 years. Our core mission is to
ensure that the American public has
access to Federal Government information. The Agency has successfully
accomplished this mission by working in close partnership with all three
branches of the Federal Government in
the creation, cataloging and indexing,
reproduction, storage, dissemination,
authentication, and preservation of
Federal Government information. GPO
utilizes conventional technology and
state-of-the-art methods to produce
and distribute Federal Government
information. GPO ensures that Federal
Government information is readily
available to all citizens of this great
nation. Accordingly, Federal Government information is accessible in an
array of communication mediums
from traditional printed products, such
as books and pamphlets, to electronic
documents and on-line databases that
are accessible through the Internet by
the entire World.
By law and tradition, the Agency
has three essential missions:
■ To provide the agencies and organizations that make up the three
branches of the Federal Government
with expert publishing and printing
services, on a cost-recovery basis, in
order to avoid duplication and waste
of government resources.
■ To provide, in partnership with
Federal Depository Libraries, for
nationwide community facilities for
the perpetual, free and ready public
access to the printed and electronic
documents, and other information
products, of the Federal Government.
■ To distribute, on a cost-recovery
basis, copies of printed and electronic documents and other Federal
Government information products
to the general public.

GPO is one of the Nation’s oldest
and most venerable agencies, within
which the ofﬁcial version of every great
American state paper since President
Lincoln’s time has been produced.
Many of the Nation’s most important
information products, such as the Congressional Record and all other legislative
information supporting the U.S. Senate
and House of Representatives, are produced at the GPO Plant in Washington,
DC. This 1.5 million square foot industrial complex is the largest Government
information processing, publishing,
and distribution facility in the World.
The GPO Plant is primarily tasked to
produce certain core products that generally have high quality, high security,
and/or short turnaround requirements.
Therefore, GPO relies heavily on the
private sector to satisfy the majority of
the Federal Government’s publishing
requirements in an economical and
efﬁcient manner.
GPO maintains a close partnership
with the American printing and publishing industry. Thousands of small,
medium, and large businesses, as well
as small disadvantaged businesses, located in every state in the country, support the Agency in accomplishing its
mission. GPO maintains a nationwide
database of commercial businesses that
compete to produce, and often distribute, most of the information products
required for the Federal Government.
GPO ensures that Federal customers
get quality information products in a
timely manner at the best value from
the private sector.

Programs and Operations
The Government-wide programs and
operations managed by GPO are based
on various public laws codiﬁed in Title
44, Public Printing and Documents,
of the United States Code (U.S.C.).
GPO’s statutory responsibilities include
fulﬁlling the printing needs of the
Federal Government and distributing
Government information products to
the public.
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Funding of Programs and Operations
The Agency’s programs and operations are funded through a businesstype revolving fund, authorized by 44
U.S.C. § 309, and annual and other
appropriations provided by Congress.
The GPO Revolving Fund was designed
to be self-sustaining. Accordingly, the
Revolving Fund pays for the cost of
the Agency’s programs and operations
and is reimbursed at rates and prices
that are intended to recover the full
cost of goods and services delivered to
customers.
The major sources of funds for
the GPO Revolving Fund include: (1)
payments from Federal customers for
printing and binding, blank paper
and paper products, and information
products and services; (2) sales of
Government publications and information products to the general public,
bookstores, book dealers, and businesses; and (3) fund transfers from the
Congressional Printing and Binding
Appropriation (CP&B) and the Superintendent of Documents’ Salaries and
Expenses (S&E) Appropriation. These
two annual appropriations are used to
reimburse the GPO Revolving Fund for
costs incurred while performing congressional work and fulﬁlling statutory
requirements to disseminate Federal
Government information to the public,
respectively. Reimbursements to the
Revolving Fund from these two appropriations are recorded as revenue when
expended. Generally, any unexpended
annual appropriations are returned to
the U.S. Department of the Treasury
after ﬁve years have passed.
Congress has occasionally made
no-year appropriations available to
the Agency for special purposes. Funds
have been appropriated for building
improvements, security improvements,
and voluntary separation incentive
payments. In ﬁscal year 2005, Congress
made approximately $22 million of
previously appropriated funds available
to the GPO Revolving Fund to provide
future funding for the GPO’s Digital
Content Management System.
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Major Programs and Operations
The GPO Revolving Fund and appropriations from Congress are used to
ﬁnance the programs and operations of
the Agency. An overview of GPO’s major programs and operations follows.

Plant Operations – The GPO Plant
provides Congress with all legislative
printing services, including overnight
production of the Congressional Record,
bills, reports, hearings, and other congressional documents. The legislative
workload demand that will be placed
on Plant Operations in future years is
uncertain, subject to many variables,
and cannot be accurately forecast with
a high degree of certainty for budgeting purposes. Accordingly, in those
years where the congressional printing
and binding requirements exceed the
funding provided by Congress, GPO
uses its authority to temporarily fund
the shortfall through the Revolving
Fund. Congressional funding has been
adequate in most years.
At September 30, 2005, no funding shortfalls are projected, as appropriations made available for funding
legislative services during ﬁscal year
2005 are considered adequate. GPO’s
Plant Operations also provide essential Executive Branch printing services,
including the daily Federal Register, the
Code of Federal Regulations, and U.S.
Passports and postal cards. The customers reimburse the GPO Revolving Fund
for these services through a system of
rates and prices that recover costs.
Digital Media Services – This business
unit provides digital media services
(e.g., Web site design, development,
and maintenance) to Federal agencies.
In the future, this unit will provide expanded services to Federal agencies and
the Federal Depository Library Program
(FDLP), by allowing them to both add
content to GPO’s planned Digital Content System, and withdraw or receive
content to produce speciﬁc products
and services. Digital Media Services will
also provide a platform for training
GPO employees in 21st Century workforce skills while providing retrospective document scanning services for the
FDLP and Federal agencies.
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Customer Services – GPO’s Procurement Program is an economical and efﬁcient source for satisfying the publishing needs of the Federal Government.
The majority of the Federal Government’s printing needs are effectively
satisﬁed through this partnership with
industry that takes advantage of the
vast resources, expertise, and specialization within the private sector. The
Program competitively acquires products and services from the private sector
through various types of procurement
vehicles tailored to the speciﬁc needs
of customers. Thousands of pre-qualiﬁed businesses, small to large in size,
openly compete for Government printing jobs. GPO procurement and technical experts are available to oversee each
job to ensure that the contractor meets
the customer’s quality and schedule
requirements. GPO’s performance
measures for on-time delivery and
quality acceptance demonstrate the effectiveness of this partnership between
industry and government.
Sales of Publications Program – The
operations of the Sales of Publications
Program are being reengineered to
improve customer service and lower
operating costs. Some major actions
have been completed and others are
underway to introduce new technologies, adopt the industry’s leading
practices, right-size operations, reduce
costs, and increase revenues. Although
intended to be self-funding, this program has not recovered all of its operating expenses since ﬁscal year 1997. A
downward trend in customer demand
for printed publications has signiﬁcantly reduced program revenues. The Sales
of Publications Program earned $22.6
million in revenues during ﬁscal year
2005. Revenues declined by $1.4 million, or 6.1 percent, when compared
to last year’s revenues of $24.0 million.
This downward trend in sales began
in ﬁscal year 1995 when program revenues totaled about $80 million.
The Superintendent of Documents
completed several major actions to
reduce the costs of the Sales of Publications Program in the last two years. Ofﬁce and warehouse space requirements
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were signiﬁcantly reduced in ﬁscal
year 2004. Ofﬁce space requirements
at Central Ofﬁce were reduced as a
result of a smaller workforce. Inventory reduction and space consolidation
efforts allowed GPO to vacate one of
the two leased warehouse buildings in
Laurel, Maryland. The quantity of each
new publication purchased for the sales
inventory was reduced to minimize
inventory disposal costs. Customers
are being encouraged to use the economical and efﬁcient U. S. Government
Online Bookstore to buy publications.
The Superintendent of Documents is
also improving operations and service
by adopting industry-leading practices,
such as an On Demand, Just-In-Time
Inventory for Government publications. Partnering and expanding business relationships with the private
sector are also being explored.
Federal Depository Library Program –
The S&E Appropriation funds the
operations of the FDLP, the Cataloging and Indexing Program, the By-Law
Distribution Program, and the distribution component of the International
Exchange Program of the Library of
Congress. The FDLP consists of over
1,250 depository libraries across the
nation, and includes GPO Access, a
GPO Internet site with a wealth of
digital Government information. Long
recognized as the National authority
for cataloging Government publications, the FDLP is also recognized as a
center of excellence in other aspects of
managing an electronic collection for
permanent public access. GPO is making major investments in improving
the FDLP, as discussed later.
Reorganization of Operations
Along Business Lines
GPO is reorganizing its business operations to deliver Federal information
products and services from a ﬂexible
digital platform in the future. Historically, the Agency has been organized
to carry out its mission in a traditional
printing craft setting with its emphasis
on extensive capital investments in
heavy metal equipment operated in a
large factory environment. While GPO’s
mission will remain essentially the same
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in the future, the introduction of digital
technology has changed the ways its
products and services will be created
and how they will look and function
to meet the ever-changing needs of the
Federal Government and public users of
Federal Government information.
In 2003, the Public Printer initiated
a major reorganization of GPO to improve customer service, program management, and operational performance.
The Agency-wide reorganization
established several key management
positions, including the Managing
Director of Customer Services, the
Managing Director of Plant Operations,
the Managing Director of Information
Dissemination, the Chief Information
Ofﬁcer (CIO), the Chief Financial Ofﬁcer (CFO), the Chief Human Capital
Ofﬁcer, and the Chief of Staff. In 2004,
the Director of New Business Development and the two Co-Directors of
Innovation and New Technology were
added to further improve the GPO
Management Team.
On December 1, 2004, GPO issued
A Strategic Vision for the 21st Century.
GPO has begun to reconﬁgure its organizational structure around six business lines to better address the many
challenges and opportunities posed by
the 21st century publishing environment. The new organizational structure
will assist GPO’s transformation into
a more efﬁcient and customer-driven
agency; implement a more integrated
approach to printing, publishing, and
information dissemination requirements; employ more advanced business systems; and improve management control and decision making.
In 2005, GPO initiated actions to
implement the following six business
units. Two of the six business units,
Digital Media Services and Customer
Services, were established organizations
at the end of ﬁscal year 2005. The other
four business units will be operational
within two years.
Security and Intelligent Documents –
This line of business will work with
Federal agencies to assist in the safe
and secure design, production and
distribution of security and intelligent documents, many of which will

incorporate electronic and other fraud
and counterfeit protection features.
GPO is working closely with Congress
and other Federal agencies to develop
and implement smart documents such
as passports, travel documents, and
immigration forms that will incorporate electronic security for fraud and
counterfeit protocols.
Digital Media Services – This new business unit was established in 2005 and
provides Web site development and
maintenance services to Federal customers. These experts will eventually
provide services to Federal agencies and
the FDLP, to allow them to both add
content to GPO’s planned Digital Content System, and to withdraw or receive
content to produce speciﬁc products
and services. The unit will develop the
capability to efﬁciently convert printed
legacy documents into searchable digital content that meets FDLP standards.
This group will lead in the development of new GPO electronic products
and services to better meet our customers’ information needs, including Web
site design and hosting, and rich media
capabilities. This business team will
also house GPO’s creative capabilities
for customers.
Customer Services – This is an existing
GPO business unit that was previously
focused primarily on printing procurement functions and operated in a
decentralized fashion with roughly half
the purchasing requirements handled
by its Washington headquarters and
the other half in ofﬁces throughout
the country. As the number of Federal
Government printing jobs continues to
decline and the quantities are reduced
for existing jobs, the current structure
is no longer ﬁnancially viable and
is not needed with today’s business
communication capabilities. This unit
will be transformed into a consultative
selling organization with an emphasis on educating Federal Government
customers in regard to the best ways
of using information technology to
meet their program objectives. The
unit will continue to purchase most
required services, including printing,
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in the private sector. This unit will be
organized around its customers, with
a team of GPO employees assigned to
each principal agency customer. Each
team will have a manager who will be
an authority on the mission of their customer agency and will be supported by
a national account manager who will be
responsible for developing new business
with that agency.
Library Services and Content Management – This unit will continue to
manage the FDLP under the direction
of Congress to ensure equitable, secure,
convenient, and permanent public
access to Federal Government information in tangible and digital forms. This
unit will oversee the development of
processes and standards to ensure the
timely inclusion of all past, present and
future Federal Government publications, whether born digital or created
through digitization of print material,
into the GPO Digital Publication Content System to create a complete FDLP
digital information collection that
can be authenticated and preserved
for future generations. The unit will
support the Federal Depository Library
community in its efforts to create a
reasonable number of comprehensive
collections of tangible Federal Government publications in view of changing
library resources and technology. GPO
will also develop two complete collections, as last resorts, that will store
both tangible and digital versions of all
publications.
Publication and Information Sales Program – Because of dwindling demand
for printed products, GPO will discontinue ordering printed copies of agency
publications for warehousing and
subsequent sale. Instead, this unit will
develop a capability to fulﬁll customer
orders through other booksellers. GPO
will continue to provide subscription services for Federal Government
periodical publications that can be
fulﬁlled directly from the printer or its
mail house, and that are economically
viable. A contract vendor employing
on-demand printing technology will
provide back copies. While the FDLP
will continue to offer free public access
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to all Government information available through the Internet, GPO will
focus on developing unique collections
of digital information, which will be
“pushed” over the Internet to primarily
business customers on a subscription
basis. GPO is interested in forming
alliances with Federal agencies and
private sector information vendors as
appropriate.
Ofﬁcial Journals of Government – The
need for traditional print products such
as the Ofﬁcial Journals of Government
(such as the Congressional Record and
many legislative products, and the
Federal Register and related products),
will remain until such time as practicable alternatives are developed and accepted by our customers. This business
line will continue to meet congressional and agency needs for these types of
traditional products while at the same
time ensuring the proper coordination
of their digital versions with other GPO
business operations and meeting GPO’s
electronic information dissemination
mandate.
Management Initiatives to
Improve Agency Operations
Several major management initiatives
are also underway to improve the economy, efﬁciency, and effectiveness of the
Agency’s programs and operations and
improve the quality and timeliness of
service to our customers. A synopsis
of these major management initiatives
follows.

New Building Project – The GPO
Headquarters is located in an aging,
oversized facility that is expensive to
maintain. Plans are under consideration to relocate to modern, efﬁcient
facilities scaled and equipped to meet
GPO’s needs in the 21st century. Rather
than burden the taxpayers with this
project, GPO has been investigating
opportunities to ﬁnance it through the
redevelopment of the current facility.
In September 2004, following approval
from the Joint Committee on Printing,
GPO selected The Staubach Company,
an expert real estate advisory ﬁrm, to
help guide the Agency in this process.
GPO is seeking legislative authority
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from Congress for this proposed building development project.
Integrated Library System – The transition to a predominantly electronic
FDLP began in 1996 at the direction
of Congress. In ﬁscal year 2002, GPO
received approval from Congress to
acquire a commercial off-the-shelf Integrated Library System (ILS). In 2004,
GPO awarded a contract for implementation of ILS. This IT project is being
accomplished with assistance from
GovWorks, a Federal acquisition center.
The ILS Project is almost complete and
the system is scheduled to be operational in ﬁscal year 2006. Once operational,
the ILS public cataloging interface will
offer enhanced information identiﬁcation and location capabilities to all
users. Depository library staff will, for
the ﬁrst time, have direct access to the
processing and product status information, satisfying the majority of FDLP
customer inquiries.
Major Investment in GPO Access – The
Superintendent of Documents is also
improving the FDLP. About $2.5 million in funds from the S&E Appropriation for 2004 are being used to enhance
GPO Access and other information dissemination areas within the authority
of the Superintendent of Documents.
Planned enhancements to GPO Access
include increased storage capacity,
stronger security, and improved performance to the millions of users in the
nation. This major IT project is being
accomplished with assistance from
GovWorks, a Federal acquisition center
administered by the U.S. Department of
the Interior.
GPO Enterprise Program – GPO
launched the GPO Enterprise Program
in 2004. This major IT project will
modernize GPO application systems
throughout the Agency that support
GPO business, administrative, and
ﬁnancial operations. The scope of the
project includes the replacement of
legacy systems as well as the installation of new applications that will
beneﬁt the Agency. The existing Oracle
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ﬁnancial applications are being used
as a foundation for establishing an integrated agency-wide information system. In 2004, Oracle software licenses
were purchased and existing Oracle
ﬁnancial applications were relocated
to a secure host computer facility. In
2005, the Oracle Purchasing, Inventory, and Accounts Payable modules
were placed in service to support IT
equipment acquisitions and issuances
at GPO. Additionally, GPO started the:
Human Resources, Standard Form 52
Project; the Procure to Pay Project;
and the Accounts Receivable Project.
GPO also used GovWorks to acquire IT
consulting services that assisted in the
development of a detailed phased-approach implementation plan for Oracle
applications.
Digital Content Management System –
GPO began planning the development
of the Digital Content Management
System in 2004. The Digital Content
Management System will allow GPO
to obtain, preserve, and provide access
to information produced by all three
branches of Federal Government,
and the material currently held in the
custody of the GPO and the Federal
Depository Libraries. The Digital Content Management System will enable
the GPO’s customers to electronically
access the content they want and allow
us to deliver it in the formats they
desire. GPO committed $20 million in
appropriated funds for this project in
2005.
Sharing of Excess Building Space – In
ﬁscal year 2004, GPO started to provide
excess building space to other Legislative Branch entities through interagency
agreements for reimbursable services.
GPO was providing excess space to
the U.S. Capitol Police and Architect
of the Capitol at the end of ﬁscal year
2005. Additional excess space will be
provided to the Sergeant at Arms for
the U.S. Senate in ﬁscal year 2006. This
management initiative helps reduce
the cost to GPO of operating this aging
over-sized facility, plus makes geographically desirable space available to
other entities that serve Congress in the
Legislative Branch.
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Security Improvements – GPO has been
making steady progress to strengthen
security at the Agency, and better plan
for disaster recovery. Many of these
security improvements were funded by
a Congressional appropriation of $4
million for Emergency Response Funds
(ERF) in 2002.
Goal Sharing Program – Effective
October 1, 2004, the Public Printer
established the GPO Goal Sharing
Program. This incentive award program
was designed to beneﬁt the Agency and
all eligible employees. Any realized cost
savings resulting from employees’ efforts
to reduce GPO’s costs in certain deﬁned
areas will be shared equally between
the Agency and the workforce (50/50
split). Employees are eligible to receive
an equal share of the 50 percent portion
of the realized cost savings allocated to
the workforce. The three initial cost saving areas are (1) Employee Safety (i.e.,
workers’ compensation), (2) Utilities
(i.e., electric and steam), and (3) Paper
Waste (i.e., production spoilage). The
ﬁrst year of this incentive award program was ﬁscal year 2005. At September
30, 2005, GPO accrued liabilities of
$445,000 for estimated employee award
payments. The awards are scheduled to
be paid in ﬁscal year 2006.
Human Resource Requirements
for Agency Operations
Human resources are essential to the
success of GPO’s mission. The experienced and talented workforce supports
every essential program and operation
of the Agency. The GPO workforce
totaled 8,500 employees in ﬁscal year
1976 and 2,372 employees at the end
of ﬁscal year 2005. The reduction in
the workforce is in large part due to a
decline in the demand for traditional
printing. Printing on paper has steadily
declined over the years as advances in
digital technology and services continue to expand the accessibility, form,
and wealth of information available to
the public by other methods of communication.
The decline in customer demand
for traditional printing has reduced the

workload for all major programs and
operations at GPO. As less printing is
produced and procured for the Federal
Government, fewer printed publications are available for distribution
and sale. As a result of this workload
decline and changing technology, the
GPO workforce is being retrained and
right-sized.
Workforce Restructuring to Reduce the
Cost of Operations
In April 2003, the Public Printer established a Retirement Separation Incentive Program (RSIP) under authority
of Public Law 105-275, as amended,
to help restructure the GPO workforce
over ﬁscal years 2003 and 2004. This
rightsizing of the workforce was necessary to help stem the trend in operating
losses that have occurred over the past
several years as the demand for traditional printing declined.
The RSIP permitted incentive payments of up to $25,000 per employee
for voluntary separation from the
Agency. This RSIP reduced the workforce by 542 employees, or about 18
percent. The RSIP reduced estimated
personnel costs and beneﬁts by about
$38 million per year. GPO accrued
estimated costs of about $18 million
for the RSIP during ﬁscal years 2003
and 2004. A total of $13.4 million
in incentive payments were paid to
former employees. The balance of $4.6
million due the Ofﬁce of Personnel
Management was unpaid at the end of
ﬁscal year 2005. The U.S. Congress appropriated $10 million (before rescission of $59,000) to the GPO Revolving
Fund in ﬁscal year 2004 to help ﬁnance
this workforce restructuring.
The RSIP was a major cost reduction initiative that helped GPO to
realize a modest net income in both
ﬁscal years 2004 and 2005. GPO plans
to further reduce the workforce by
approximately 200 employees through
a Voluntary Separation Incentive Program (VSIP) in ﬁscal year 2006 under
authority of Public Law 108-447, dated
December 8, 2004.
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Financial Results
for Fiscal Year 2005
The Agency’s operating revenues
totaled $702.7 million for ﬁscal year
2005 and $691.8 million for ﬁscal year
2004. This represents an increase in
revenues of $10.9 million or 1.6 percent. The Agency’s operating expenses,
before other operating expenses,
totaled $696.5 million for ﬁscal year
2005 and $690.4 million for ﬁscal year
2004. This represents an increase in
expenses of $6.1 million or 0.9 percent.
The GPO Revolving Fund realized a net
gain of $6.1 million for ﬁscal year 2005
before other operating expenses. In
comparison, the GPO Revolving Fund
realized a net gain of $1.3 million for
ﬁscal year 2004 before other operating
expenses.
Other operating expenses consisted
of the annual change in the accounting
estimate for the U.S. Department of
Labor (DOL) actuarial estimate of the
liability for GPO’s long-term Federal
Employees’ Compensation Act (FECA)
beneﬁts (i.e., workers’ compensation).
The liability decreased by $3.5 million
in ﬁscal year 2005 and $9.9 million
in ﬁscal year 2004 due, in part, to the
workforce reductions. After considering
these reductions, GPO realized a consolidated net income of $9.6 million
for ﬁscal year 2005 and $11.3 million
for ﬁscal year 2004.
In-House Printing includes Plant
Operations, Digital Media Services, and
the former Denver Regional Printing
Plant that was closed on May 1, 2004.
Revenues from In-House Printing
totaled $182.2 million for ﬁscal year
2005 and $187.7 million for ﬁscal year
2004. This represents a decrease in
revenues of $5.5 million or 2.9 percent.
Revenues from In-House Printing vary
and are dependent on the demand
for services from Congress and other
Federal customers. Operating expenses
totaled $158.6 million for ﬁscal year
2005 and $179.4 million for ﬁscal
year 2004. This represents a decrease
in expenses of $20.8 million or 11.6
percent. The reduction in the plant
workforce, through the RSIP, contrib-

7

Section I: Management’s Discussion and Analysis

uted to this decrease in expenses. The
net income for these operations, before
other operating expenses, was $23.5
million for ﬁscal year 2005 and $8.3
million for ﬁscal year 2004.
Purchased Printing includes all
publishing services acquired from the
private sector by Customer Services for
Federal customers. Revenues from Purchased Printing totaled $473.4 million
for ﬁscal year 2005 and $449.1 million
for ﬁscal year 2004. This represents an
increase in revenues of $24.3 million
or 5.4 percent. Revenues from Purchased Printing vary and are dependent
on the demand for services from the
Federal agencies and other customers.
Operating expenses totaled $486.6
million for ﬁscal year 2005 and $450.1
million for ﬁscal year 2004. This represents an increase in expenses of $36.5
million or 8.1 percent. An increase in
the cost of services procured from contractors contributed to this increase in
expenses. The net loss for this program,
before other operating expenses, was
$13.2 million for ﬁscal year 2005 and
$1.1 million for ﬁscal year 2004.
The Sales of Publications Program
includes all publications, subscriptions,
and other information products sold
to the public by the Superintendent of
Documents. The demand for printed
products continues to decline due to
expansion in the availability of free
information from the Federal Government on the Internet. Revenues from
the Sales of Publications Program totaled $22.6 million for ﬁscal year 2005
and $24.0 million for ﬁscal year 2004.
This represents a decrease in revenues
of $1.4 million or 5.8 percent. Operating expenses totaled $26.4 million
for ﬁscal year 2005 and $33.2 million
for ﬁscal year 2004. This represents a
decrease in expenses of $6.8 million or
20.5 percent. The net loss for this program, before other operating expenses,
was $3.9 million for ﬁscal year 2005
and $9.2 million for ﬁscal year 2004.
In ﬁscal year 2001, the GPO Revolving Fund received $6 million in
supplemental funding, under Public
Law 107-20, to replace the antiquated
air conditioning system and install new
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energy-efﬁcient lighting ﬁxtures. These
funds were fully obligated at the end
of ﬁscal year 2003. About $5 million
was allocated for the air conditioning
project, and about $1 million was allocated to the lighting ﬁxtures project.
GPO completed this building improvement project in ﬁscal year 2004. The
entire $6 million appropriation was
expended as of September 30, 2004.
In ﬁscal year 2002, the GPO Revolving Fund received an appropriation of
$4 million for Emergency Response
Funds (ERF) under Public Law 107117. GPO has been using the ERF to
enhance physical security and information technology security, ensure
continuity of essential services, and
acquire security equipment. The entire
$4 million appropriation was committed for speciﬁc purposes, and $58,000
remained unexpended as of September
30, 2005.
In ﬁscal year 2004, the GPO Revolving Fund received a $10 million appropriation from Congress for workforce
restructuring. A subsequent budget
rescission of $59,000 (0.59 percent)
reduced the appropriated amount to
$9,941,000. These funds were used to
partially ﬁnance the $18 million estimated cost of the RSIP accrued during
ﬁscal years 2003 and 2004 (see Note
16). All of the appropriated funds were
expended as of September 30, 2004.
During ﬁscal year 2005 and 2004,
GPO Revolving Fund recorded Appropriation Revenues of $2.2 million
and $15.2 million, respectively (see
Note 12.B). This revenue recognition
represents amounts expended by GPO
during the year for the purposes authorized by Congress.

Performance Measures
GPO gauges its overall efﬁciency and
effectiveness using certain performance
measures. Generally, these performance
measures are based on established
standards (i.e., goals and objectives)
that are compared against actual per-

Section I: Management’s Discussion and Analysis

formance (i.e., results) for each ﬁscal
year. The following sections discuss the
major operating performance measures
and ﬁnancial performance measures
used by the Agency.

Operating Performances Measures
Overtime Management
Overtime is a human resource management tool used to meet peak and
urgent customer workload demands
primarily in production and procurement operations. GPO manages and
controls overtime worked to minimize
labor costs. In ﬁscal year 2005, GPO
employees worked 155,000 hours of
overtime, which is 18.8 percent less
than the 191,000 hours worked in ﬁscal year 2004. GPO incurred overtime
costs of $6.2 million in ﬁscal year 2005
and $7.4 million in ﬁscal year 2004.
Comparatively, the cost of overtime
decreased by $1.2 million. Additionally, GPO achieved its management
overtime objective for ﬁscal year 2005.
Actual overtime hours worked of
155,000 hours was 40,000 hours below
the ceiling of 195,000 overtime hours
set for ﬁscal year 2005. The upper limit
for overtime will be lowered to 180,000
hours for ﬁscal year 2006.
Production Chargeable Hours
Chargeable hours decreased to 447,000
in ﬁscal year 2005 from 533,000 in
ﬁscal year 2004, a decrease of 86,000
hours, or 16.1 percent. The results for
2005 met GPO’s goal of achieving sufﬁcient chargeable hours necessary to
break even. GPO’s ﬁscal year 2006 goal
is to have enough chargeable hours to
achieve break even in Production Operations. Due to the mix in hourly rates
charged for the various production
processes, a speciﬁc chargeable hour
target cannot be established.

Congressional Record Delivery
The Congressional Record is the ofﬁcial
record of the proceedings and debates
of the Congress. This important Federal
information product is published daily
when Congress is in session. GPO uses
a performance measure to evaluate the
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timeliness of the delivery of this core
product to Congress. To gauge GPO’s
success in delivering the Congressional
Record to Congress on-time, GPO established a deadline of 9 a.m. the following day when copy is received in GPO
by midnight, regardless of whether the
Senate or the House of Representatives
is in session. The on-time delivery rate
was 78 percent for ﬁscal year 2005 and
86 percent for ﬁscal year 2004.
On-Time Delivery of Procured Printing
Customer Services contracted with
commercial printers to ship 124,300
jobs in ﬁscal year 2005 compared with
127,900 jobs in ﬁscal year 2004. For
ﬁscal year 2005, GPO’s goal was to
have at least 95 percent of procured
printing orders delivered on schedule
and a quality acceptance rate of at least
99 percent. Both goals were met for ﬁscal year 2005. Our goal will remain the
same for ﬁscal year 2006.

Financial Performance Measures
Cash Management
Payment Performance — In ﬁscal year
2005, GPO continued to save millions of dollars from taking favorable
prompt payment discounts offered
by contractors for the payment of invoices within the discount period. GPO
earned prompt payment discounts of
$6.8 million on purchased printing
expense of $430 million. Last year GPO
earned $6.5 million in discounts on
$413 million in printing expenses. This
represents an average discount rate of
1.6 percent for ﬁscal year 2005 and ﬁscal year 2004. The 1.6 percent discount
rate earned exceeded the goal of 1.4
percent. Our goal for ﬁscal year 2006
will remain the same.
Lost prompt payment discounts increased to $488,000 in ﬁscal year 2005
from $217,000 in ﬁscal year 2004. The
percentages of discounts lost to discounts offered were 6.7 percent and 3.2
percent in ﬁscal years 2005 and 2004,
respectively. GPO did not meet the goal
set for ﬁscal year 2005, which was a

maximum of 2.5 percent. The increase
in lost discounts was generally due to
inadequate documentation and other
information needed to certify contractor invoices for payment. Our goal for
ﬁscal year 2006 will remain the same.
Electronic Payments — Electronic funds
transfer (EFT) is the most economical and efficient method of paying
the Agency’s financial obligations to
contractors, employees, and other nonFederal entities. EFT payments reduce
the need for more expensive paper
check payments that take days to arrive
through the mail. In fiscal year 2005,
about 81 percent of all GPO payments,
were made by EFT. In comparison,
about 88 percent of all payments were
made by EFT in fiscal year 2004. Our
goal for fiscal year 2005 was 90 percent
of total payments. This goal was not
met primarily due to GPO outsourcing
its predominantly EFT-based payroll
system to the National Finance Center.
Our percentage goal for EFT payments
will be reassessed for fiscal year 2006.
Debt Management
Federal Receivables — In ﬁscal year
2005, GPO billed Federal agencies
$695 million for printing and binding
services. Of this amount, $495 million,
or 71.2 percent, was collected using the
Department of Treasury’s Intra-governmental Payment and Collection (IPAC)
system; $52.0 million, or 7.5 percent,
was from funds residing in Printing
and Binding Deposit Accounts maintained by the GPO; and $12.4 million, or 1.8 percent, was collected via
credit card. These methods enable the
collection of funds within 30 days or
less, as opposed to the more traditional
methods of collection which require
the creation and exchange of paper
documents.
GPO’s billed accounts receivable
from Government customers totaled
approximately $7.3 million at the end
of ﬁscal year 2005, compared with
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$20.4 million at the end of ﬁscal year
2004. Improvements in customer billing and collection contributed to the
reduction in accounts receivable. The
U.S. Department of Defense (DoD)
is GPO’s largest customer and debtor.
DoD owed GPO about $2.2 million
at September 30, 2005, of which $1.8
million, or 81.8 percent, was past due
in payment (i.e., over 30 days old).
DoD owed $431,000 for invoices
between 31 to 60 days old, $181,000
between 61 to 90 days old, and $1.2
million over 90 days old. DoD’s indebtedness to GPO of $1.2 million, over
90 days old, represents 16.7 percent of
GPO’s total accounts receivables, over
90 days old, at year-end.
GPO offers customer agencies the
alternative of establishing Printing
and Binding Deposit Accounts for the
prepayment of any and all printing
and publishing services acquired from
GPO. Deposit Accounts greatly simplify
customer agency accounting and have
the added beneﬁt of providing detailed
customer account information, via a
secure Web site. Customers are able to
either download or print their transactions. Separate deposit accounts may
be established for different organizations, funds, or cost centers within
the customer agency. At the end of the
year, GPO maintained 588 printing
and binding deposit accounts valued
at $46.0 million. Additionally, GPO
held $4.0 million in customer deposit
accounts for the Sales of Publications
Program. Therefore, customer deposit
accounts totaled $50.0 million as of
September 30, 2005.
Customer agencies also have the
option of paying for their printing and
binding needs by credit card. Credit
card transactions in ﬁscal year 2005
totaled $12.4 million for 15,096 printing jobs. In comparison, GPO collected
$9.6 million for 12,814 printing jobs in
ﬁscal year 2004. The average price per
job paid via credit card for the past 2
years was $788, indicating that customers ﬁnd it a convenient method to pay
for small printing jobs.
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Possible Future Effects of Existing
Events and Conditions
The following major events and conditions will impact the Agency’s programs, operations, and other activities
in the future. A synopsis of each major
event or condition follows.
Transformation to a World-Class
Organization
The transformation to a world-class
organization is well underway at GPO.
As discussed earlier, GPO is implementing an agency-wide reorganization
to establish six major business lines
and restructure operations to improve
customer service and the economy,
efﬁciency and effectiveness of operations. The Agency has also started to
implement new digital information
technologies to improve GPO business, administrative, and ﬁnancial
operations under the GPO Enterprise
Project, the Integrated Library System
(ILS) Project, and the Digital Content
Management System Project. GPO has
also adopted the best practices of other
public and private sector organizations,
most notably with respect to human
capital management.
New Building
Plans are under consideration to relocate the Agency to modern, efﬁcient
facilities equipped to meet GPO’s
needs in the 21st century. GPO has
been investigating opportunities to ﬁnance it through the redevelopment of
the current facility. The Public Printer
is seeking legislative authority from
Congress for this proposed building
development project.
Digital Content Management System
The Digital Content Management
System is the ﬂagship project in GPO’s
efforts to improve public access to
Federal Government information. GPO
was planning the development of the
Digital Content Management System
at the end of ﬁscal year 2005. The
Digital Content Management System
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will allow GPO to obtain, preserve, and
provide access to information produced by all three branches of Federal
Government, and the material currently
held in the custody of the GPO and
the Federal Depository Libraries. The
Digital Content Management System
will enable the GPO’s customers to
electronically access the content they
want and allow us to deliver it in the
formats they desire. GPO committed
$20 million in funds for this project in
2005. Additional funding is expected to
be required in the future for completion of this important project.
Convenience Printing Services
Customer Services is partnering with
the private sector to provide Convenience Printing Services to Federal customers through a nationwide network
of local convenience printing outlets.
Services under this new contract will be
available beginning in ﬁscal year 2006.
Through the operation of multiple nationwide printing outlets, the contractor will provide a wide range of services
including digital printing, print-on-demand, duplicating, binding, ﬁnishing,
distribution, order fulﬁllment, basic
design services, online ordering, digital
content management system, and
implementation of an exclusive purchase card for all transactions. The new
program will provide Federal agencies
with a cost-effective purchasing vehicle
to fulﬁll their short-run printing and
binding needs.

Fiscal Year 2006 Projections
Congress created the GPO Revolving
Fund to ﬁnance the business-type operations of the Agency. The Revolving
Fund was designed to ﬁnancially selfsustaining. Accordingly, the Agency’s
overall ﬁnancial objective has been
to “breakeven” by recovering all costs
through a system of rates, prices, and
other charges to customers for goods
and services delivered.

The Agency achieved this ﬁnancial
objective in ﬁscal years 2004 and 2005
by realizing a modest net income for
each year. This represents a positive
turnaround in ﬁnancial performance of
the Agency when viewed in the longterm. Prior to ﬁscal year 2004, GPO
had realized a net loss for ﬁve straight
years. In ﬁscal year 2005, the Agency
realized net income of $6.1 million
from operations before recognizing
a decrease of about $3.5 million in
DOL’s estimate of workers’ compensation liability for GPO under FECA.
Overall, the Agency realized net income
of $9.6 million in ﬁscal year 2005 and
$11.3 million in ﬁscal year 2004. GPO’s
ﬁnancial performance goal for ﬁscal
year 2006 is to earn enough revenues
to recover all costs.
The Public Printer has built a strong
GPO Management Team with vast business and government experience, and a
wealth of industry knowledge. Greater
emphasis is now being placed on
operating GPO in a business-like manner. Managers are now being evaluated
on their efforts to meet annual budget
goals and ﬁnancial performance objectives for the programs and operations
that they are responsible for managing
at GPO.
The Agency’s ﬁscal year 2006 ﬁnancial performance is expected to beneﬁt
from management initiatives recently
completed, in process, or planned.
These initiatives should increase
revenues and reduce costs. Many of
these initiatives provide beneﬁts of a
recurring nature, and therefore, will improve the Agency’s long-term ﬁnancial
performance.
First, GPO reduced the workforce
by 542 employees under the RSIP
during ﬁscal years 2003 and 2004. The
RSIP had one-time estimated costs of
$18 million, and realized estimated
payroll savings of $38 million per
year, as discussed earlier in this section
and in Note 16. GPO plans to further
reduce the workforce by 200 employees
through a Voluntary Separation Incentive Program in ﬁscal year 2006 under
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authority of Public Law 108-447, dated
December 8, 2004. An eligible employee may receive an incentive separation
payment of up to $25,000.
Second, GPO initiated a major
reorganization in 2003 to streamline management and to bring the
Agency into line with current business
practices. In 2004, the agency-wide
reorganization established six planned
business lines to improve customer service. These business lines are currently
being implemented by the Agency, and
further progress is expected in ﬁscal
year 2006.
Third, the Public Printer established an independent Management
Advisory Committee in 2005. A Charter
describes the responsibilities of the
three-person Committee. To ensure
independence, no member may be employed by GPO or have any ﬁnancial
relationships to the Agency. The experts
on the Management Advisory Committee will also serve as an audit advisory
committee, which traditionally oversees
the process for the annual audit of the
consolidated ﬁnancial statements. The
audit committee is generally responsible for ensuring that the entity has a
high-quality ﬁnancial reporting process
that provides transparent, consistent
and comparable ﬁnancial statements.
In this regard, the committee should be
working closely with management and
both internal and external auditors to
effectively monitor the ﬁnancial reporting process.
Fourth, GPO is taking other major
steps to improve ﬁnancial management
and IT management, as recommended
by GAO. The GPO Enterprise Program,
an agency-wide IT modernization
project, is a prime example of GPO
adopting leading practices of worldclass organizations. GPO will have a
fully integrated ﬁnancial management
system once this project is complete.
Actions are being taken to implement
additional system modules in ﬁscal
year 2006.

Several other major cost saving
initiatives are underway to reduce expenditures for: (1) employee overtime;
(2) workers’ compensation; (3) energy;
(4) paper; and (5) owned and leased
space. Finally, GPO has been reducing
operating costs by closing historically
unproﬁtable operations that are no
longer required, as discussed in Note
17. The Public Printer created the GPO
Goal Sharing Program in 2004, which
took effect in ﬁscal year 2005. A major
objective of the Goal Sharing Program
is to reduce costs in targeted areas, as
discussed in Note 18.
Additionally, new and expanded
services are also expected to increase
revenues in the future for some programs at GPO. GPO is in the process
of reinventing itself to better serve its
customers. The Agency will continue
to transform its image as a producer
of ink-on-paper products to a digital
information services organization. This
major transformation will require a signiﬁcant investment in new technology
and technical skills for the future.
Finally, the Public Printer has been
meeting with the Agency’s customers.
This includes Members of Congress,
congressional staff, Federal agency
heads, the heads of Federal operations
with congruent missions, such as the
Archivist of the United States, Director of the Bureau of Engraving and
Printing, and Director of the Mint, the
library and information communities,
the printing and publishing industry,
and others to identify customer needs
and business opportunities. This critical input from customers and other
interested parties will be used to establish the future direction of the Agency
in the age of digital information and
e-Government.
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SECTION III

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated
Financial
Statements

As of September 30, 2005 and 2004
(Dollars in thousands)
2005

2004

$ 206,711

$ 194,018

104,101

144,589

Inventories, net (Note 4)

9,054

8,898

Prepaid expenses

3,313

432

323,179

347,937

56,172

59,198

$ 379,351

$ 407,135

$

$

ASSETS
Current assets
Fund balance with the U.S. Treasury (Note 2)
Accounts receivable, net (Note 3)

Total current assets
Property, plant, and equipment, net (Note 5)
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Note 6)

77,864

88,546

Deferred revenues (Note 7)

54,742

73,703

Accrued annual leave

10,039

9,294

142,645

171,543

76,122

79,603

218,767

251,146

Total current liabilities
Other liabilities
Workers’ compensation liability (Note 8)
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 9 and 10)
Net position (Note 11)
Cumulative results of operations:
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit)
Invested capital
Unexpended appropriations
Total net position
Total liabilities and total net position

1,320

(8,303)

92,879

92,879

66,385

71,413

160,584

155,989

$ 379,351

$ 407,135

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Revenues and Expenses

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 2005 and 2004

For the Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 2005 and 2004

(Dollars in thousands)

(Dollars in thousands)
2005

2004

OPERATING REVENUES

2005

2004

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Printing and binding

$ 552,123

Sales of publications
Appropriations
Reimbursements

$

531,242

22,560

24,024

123,131

131,466

4,851

5,022

702,665

691,754

Net income

$

$ 11,259

7,660

7,622

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization

Total operating revenues

9,623

Gain on disposal of property, plant, and equipment

(24)

(63)

Changes in assets and liabilities:

OPERATING EXPENSES

(Increase) decrease in assets-

Printing and reproduction

415,946

400,492

Accounts receivable

Personnel compensation and benefits

196,719

197,646

Inventories

–

7,628

Supplies and materials

31,900

32,367

Rents, communications, and utilities

Retirement separation incentive program (Note 16)

Prepaid expenses

40,488

(31,231)

(156)

1,860

(2,881)

168

Increase (decrease) in liabilities-

19,318

22,085

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

(10,684)

16,437

Publications sold

7,014

6,146

Deferred revenue

(18,961)

6,158

Depreciation and amortization

7,660

7,622

Accrued annual leave

12,985

11,904

Other services
Surplus publications

1,962

108

Travel and transportation

3,019

4,426

696,523

690,424

6,142

1,330

Subtotal
Income before other operating expenses

(3,481)

(9,929)

Total adjustments

12,706

(9,812)

Net cash provided by operating activities

22,329

1,447

(4,758)

(10,363)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment

Decrease in workers’ compensation liabilities (Note 8)

3,481
$

9,623

150

63

9,929
Net cash used in investing activities

NET INCOME

(834)

Workers’ compensation liability

Capital expenditures

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

745

$

(4,608)

(10,300)

(5,028)

(150)

(5,028)

(150)

11,259

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated ﬁnancial statements.

Decrease in unexpended appropriations
Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in fund balance
with the U.S. Treasury
Fund balance with the U.S. Treasury, beginning of year
Fund balance with the U.S. Treasury, end of year

12,693

(9,003)

194,018
$ 206,711

203,021
$

194,018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
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SECTION III

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Summary of Signiﬁcant Accounting Policies
A. Reporting Entity
The U.S. Government Printing Ofﬁce (GPO or Agency) is a Legislative Branch agency of the Federal Government. The
Agency’s mission and authority are derived from various statutes codiﬁed in Title 44, Public Printing and Documents, of the
United States Code (U.S.C.). The Congress established GPO to provide the Federal Government with an efﬁcient and effective means for the production, procurement, and dissemination of Federal Government information to the Nation.
The Public Printer of the United States, appointed by the President of the United States with the advice and consent of
the U.S. Senate, serves as the Agency head and oversees GPO’s programs and operations. These programs and operations
are funded through a business-type revolving fund, authorized by 44 U.S.C. § 309, and annual and special appropriations
provided by Congress. The GPO Revolving Fund maintains a system of accounts and records transactions to comply with
the requirements of Section 309 of Title 44.
The Joint Committee on Printing (JCP) has primary responsibility for Congressional oversight of GPO’s programs and
operations. The JCP is comprised of ﬁve members of the U.S. House of Representatives and ﬁve members of the U.S. Senate.
The Chairmanship and Vice Chairmanship of the JCP alternate between the House and the Senate by Congresses.
GPO is dependent on two annual appropriations. The Salaries and Expense (S&E) Appropriation ﬁnances certain public
information dissemination programs of the Superintendent of Documents. The Congressional Printing and Binding Appropriation is used to reimburse GPO for the cost of all publishing services provided to the Congress. GPO’s budget requests
are subject to review by the House and Senate Appropriations Committees’ Subcommittees on Legislative Branch Appropriations. GPO also receives funds from customer agencies as reimbursement for products and services, and from the public
for the sale of Government publications and subscriptions.

B. Accounting Environment
Basis of Accounting
As allowed by the Federal Accounting Standards Advisory Board (FASAB), the consolidated ﬁnancial statements of GPO
have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP), applicable to commercial enterprises. Under the accrual method, revenues are recognized
when earned, and expenses are recognized when incurred, without regard to the receipt or disbursement of cash.
Basis of Presentation and Consolidation
GPO prepares annual ﬁnancial statements that reﬂect the overall ﬁnancial position and results of operations to meet the
requirements of 31 U.S.C. § 3515(b) mandated by 44 U.S.C. § 309(e). The accompanying consolidated ﬁnancial statements include all funds under GPO’s control that have been established and maintained to account for the resources of the
Agency. All signiﬁcant intra-agency balances and transactions have been eliminated in the preparation of the consolidated
ﬁnancial statements.
The GPO ﬁnancial statements do not include the effects of centrally administered assets and liabilities of the Federal
Government, as a whole, such as interest on the public debt, which may in part be attributable to GPO. Other Federal agencies make ﬁnancial decisions and report certain ﬁnancial matters on behalf of the entire Federal Government, including
matters in which individual agencies may be an indirect party. Financial matters maintained or reported by other Federal
agencies in which GPO is indirectly involved include employee beneﬁt plans and certain legal settlements.
Funds
GPO maintains a revolving fund and a general fund to account for its various programs and operations. Each of these funds
is a distinct ﬁscal and accounting entity that accounts for cash and other ﬁnancial resources together with all related liabilities and equities.

Revolving Fund – The GPO Revolving Fund is an inter-governmental fund established by Congress on July 1, 1953. This
business-type revolving fund is available without ﬁscal year limitation for ﬁnancing the operation and maintenance of
GPO, except for those programs of the Superintendent of Documents that are funded by speciﬁc appropriations.
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The GPO Revolving Fund is a self-sustaining ﬁnancial entity used primarily to temporarily ﬁnance and account for
GPO’s Printing and Binding Operations and the Sales of Publications Operations. Accordingly, the two major sources of
revenue to the revolving fund are reimbursements from the Congress and other Federal customers for providing printing,
binding, and distribution services, and publication and subscription sales to the public.
The Printing and Binding Operations account for the revenues and expenses associated with services provided by the
printing plant (i.e., in-plant printing) and Printing Procurement Program (i.e., commercially procured printing). The costs
of these services are recovered through rates charged customers that include direct costs, overhead, and related expenses
permitted under 44 U.S.C. § 309.
The Superintendent of Documents, Sales of Publications Program, sells Federal Government information products to
the public. The sales price of a Federal Government publication is established in accordance with 44 U.S.C. § 1708. Designated bookstores at educational institutions, book dealers, and other purchasers of large quantities may receive a 25 percent
discount on the domestic price of a product.
General Fund – The General Fund is ﬁnanced by two annual Congressional appropriations to the Agency. These appropriated funds ﬁnance the cost of GPO’s support of the Congress, and the information dissemination services provided to the
public without charge to recipients by the Superintendent of Documents.
The Congressional Printing and Binding Appropriation is the larger of the two annual appropriations available to GPO.
This appropriation is used to pay the cost of the printing and binding requirements of the Congress, and the printing, binding, and distribution of publications authorized by law to be distributed to others without charge to the recipient.
The other annual appropriation made available to GPO is the Superintendent of Documents, Salaries and Expense
Appropriation. This appropriation is used to fund the following four information dissemination programs of the Superintendent of Documents: the Federal Depository Library Program (FDLP) which includes GPO Access, the Cataloging and
Indexing Program, the By-Law Distribution Program, and the International Exchange Program. The majority of these appropriated funds ﬁnance the FDLP.
Expenditures from the two annual appropriations to the Agency are used to reimburse the GPO Revolving Fund for the
cost of printing and binding, and other services and supplies furnished by GPO in accordance with Title 44, Public Printing
and Documents, of the U.S.C.

C. Fund Balance with U. S. Treasury
Fund balance with the U.S. Treasury represent all balances in GPO accounts with the U.S. Department of the Treasury (U.S.
Treasury). Generally, the U.S. Treasury processes cash receipts and disbursements for GPO.

D. Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable consist of intra-governmental amounts due to GPO, as well as amounts due from the public. Accounts
receivable are shown net of a provision for uncollectible accounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on GPO’s
recent collection experience.

E. Inventories
Inventories of publications held for sale are valued at the lower of cost, using the weighted average cost method, or market.
The publication inventories are shown net of a provision for excess inventory that may be disposed of by the Agency in the
future. The allowance for excess publications is based on life cycle studies of product sales by the Superintendent of Documents that provide a historical basis for the determination of potential excess inventory on hand.
Inventories of paper, materials and supplies include the cost of production material (e.g., blank paper, spare parts, ink,
and book cloth), as well as the cost of administrative-use supplies. These inventories are valued at the lower of cost, using
the weighted moving average cost method, or market. Inventories of materials and supplies are shown net of a provision for
obsolescence.
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F. Property, Plant, and Equipment

but not reported. The liability is determined by utilizing historic beneﬁt payment patterns related to a particular period to
estimate the ultimate payments related to that period.

Property, plant, and equipment purchases are valued at the acquisition cost. GPO capitalizes the cost of the property as an
asset when the cost is $25,000 or more, and the estimated useful life is two years or more. Printing equipment transferred to
GPO from other Federal agencies is valued in accordance with JCP Regulation Number 26, Government Printing and Binding
Regulations. This valuation approximates fair market value at the time of the transfer. Major alterations and renovations are
capitalized while normal maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred. Depreciation and amortization of property, plant, and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset.
The following table reﬂects the standard estimated useful life of each major asset category. Exceptions to these standard
estimated asset lives are authorized when justiﬁed.

J. Revenue Recognition
Printing and Binding – By law, GPO must be reimbursed for the cost of printing and binding services furnished customers.
Revenues from in-house printing and binding work are recognized on a value-added basis, as work is performed, while revenues from commercially procured printing and binding are recognized on the date the contract requirements are fulﬁlled,
which is generally the date of shipment by the commercial printer to the customer agency.
Sales of Publications – Revenues from the sale of publications and subscriptions are recognized when shipped by the Superintendent of Documents to customers.

Standard Estimated Useful Life Of Assets by Major Category
Asset Category

Standard Estimated Useful Life (Years)

1. Land

N/A

2. Building Improvements

20

3. Building Appurtenances

20

4. Other Structures and Facilities

20

5. Furniture and Fixtures

20

6. Leasehold Improvements

10

7. Plant Machinery and Equipment

10

8. Ofﬁce Machinery and Equipment

5

9. Motor Vehicles

5

10. Computer Software

3

Land has an indeﬁnite life and is not subject to depreciation.

G. Deferred Revenue
Deferred revenues are funds that are received in advance from customers for the future delivery of goods and services ordered. The Agency records these advances as revenue when the goods are delivered or the services are performed.

H. Accrued Annual Leave
Annual leave is accrued as a liability when earned, and the liability is reduced when leave is used. The annual leave liability
is calculated using the current hourly salary or wage of an employee times their total hours of unused annual leave that
has been earned. Sick leave and other types of non-vested leave are expensed when used. Employees are not entitled to a
lump-sum payment for their unused sick leave. Employees will receive a lump-sum payment for any unused annual leave
when they separate from Federal service or enter on active duty in the armed forces. Generally, this lump-sum payment will
equal the pay the employee would have received had they remained employed until expiration of the period covered by the
annual leave.

I. Workers’ Compensation Liability
The Federal Employees’ Compensation Act (FECA) provides income and medical cost protection to covered Federal civilian employees injured on the job, employees who have incurred a work-related occupational disease, and beneﬁciaries of
employees whose deaths are attributable to job-related injuries or occupational diseases.
The U.S. Department of Labor (DOL) administers the FECA Program, which provides workers’ compensation beneﬁts to
GPO employees and others through the Special Beneﬁt Fund. GPO annually reimburses DOL for the cost of FECA beneﬁt
claims paid on GPO’s behalf.
Future workers’ compensation estimates are generated from the application of actuarial procedures developed by DOL
to estimate the liability for FECA beneﬁts. The liability for future workers’ compensation beneﬁts includes the expected
liability for death, disability, medical, and miscellaneous costs for approved compensation cases related to injuries incurred
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Appropriations – Appropriation revenues are recorded when a liability is incurred for purposes permitted by the appropriations act and program legislation. Unexpended appropriations are recorded as a component of net position. Unexpended
appropriation balances are generally canceled after 5 years.
Reimbursements – Revenues from the storage and distribution of Federal Government publications by the Superintendent of
Documents for other Federal agencies are recorded when services have been performed.

K. Expense Recognition
Printing and Reproduction – This expense represents the cost of printing and reproduction jobs procured from the private
sector to satisfy the needs of the Federal Government. The expense is generally recorded on the date of shipment by the
contractor, and is shown net of vendor prompt payment discounts earned by the Agency.
Personnel Compensation and Beneﬁts – Personnel compensation consists of the wages and salaries, including overtime premium and night differential, paid to GPO employees on a biweekly cycle. Personnel beneﬁts include the Agency’s share of
contributions towards Federal Employees Health Beneﬁts (FEHB), Federal Employees’ Group Life Insurance (FEGLI) and
the two Federal Government civilian employee retirement programs. The two retirement programs are the Civil Service
Retirement System (CSRS) and the Federal Employees Retirement System (FERS) that includes the related Thrift Savings
Plan (TSP). Personnel beneﬁts also include the entire cost of transit beneﬁts provided by GPO to participating employees.
Personnel compensation and beneﬁts are recorded as expenses when earned by employees.
Supplies and Materials – Paper is the most signiﬁcant cost component within the category of supplies and materials. Paper
and paper products are commercially procured to satisfy in-plant printing requirements and customer orders for blank
paper. The expense is recorded when paper is drawn from inventory to fulﬁll customer orders or delivered to the customer
(direct mill-to-customer shipments). This expense category also includes all other supplies and materials that are not capitalized, such as personal computers, furniture, and ofﬁce supplies. The costs of these items are expensed when issued from
the stores inventory for use.
Rents, Communications, and Utilities – Rent and lease costs are incurred for the use of building space, equipment, and motor
vehicles. GPO leases ofﬁce and warehouse space from the U.S. General Services Administration (GSA) and/or commercial
landlords. GPO also rents automobiles and trucks. Communications costs include telecommunication services and postage
expenses. Utilities expenses include electricity, gas, steam, and water service. Expenses are recorded as services are provided.
Publications Sold – Publications sold expense represents the cost of publications sold to customers and the cost of subscriptions issued to subscribers. Expenses are recorded at the time of publication sale or subscription issuance.
Depreciation and Amortization – GPO uses the straight-line method of depreciation and amortization to allocate a portion of
the acquisition cost of property, plant, and equipment to each accounting period (i.e., month). The acquisition cost of each
capitalized asset is depreciated, or amortized, over the asset’s estimated useful life. The estimated useful life is measured in
months (e.g., 60 months). Depreciation, or amortization, of a capitalized asset generally commences when the capitalized
asset is placed in service.
Other Services – This expense represents the cost of services provided by contractors for audits, investigations, consulting
services, tuition, and training. The expenses are recognized when services have been provided.
UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE Financial Year in Review — Fiscal Years 2005 and 2004
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Surplus Publications – This expense represents an estimate of the cost of potentially unsaleable publications held in inventory for sale by the Superintendent of Documents. The estimate is based on an analysis of product life cycles that considers
quantities purchased, historic sales by month, inventory disposals, and remaining stock held in inventory for sale over an
assumed standard life.
Travel and Transportation – This category includes travel and transportation costs of persons or things, including employee
relocation costs. Travel costs are incurred by persons on ofﬁcial business for audits, attendance at conferences, inspections,
investigations, training, or other authorized business of the Agency. Transportation includes shipping costs for printing and
reproduction products from GPO or contractors to customer agencies, depository libraries, or other GPO locations. Travel
expenses are accrued when they are estimable, while transportation costs are generally recorded on the date of shipment.

L. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
The consolidated statements of cash ﬂows identify cash receipts and disbursements and classify each into operating, investing, and ﬁnancing activity categories. The disclosure of this information is intended to help assess the ability of GPO to
generate funds from current operations, to identify ﬁnancing acquired from outside sources, and to identify the major nonoperating (investing) uses of funds.

M. Use of Estimates

Section III: Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Fund Balance with the U.S. Treasury
A table of items included in GPO’s funds with the U.S. Treasury, including funds on-hand or in-transit to the Treasury, as of
September 30, 2005 and 2004 follows.
(Dollars in thousands)

2005
Revolving fund:
Unrestricted

$ 65,869

$

34,141

Restricted:
Deposit accounts

50,042

Retirement Separation Incentive Program
Other
On-hand or in-transit
Total revolving fund

The preparation of ﬁnancial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, as well as the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the ﬁnancial statements, and the amount of
revenues and expenses reported during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

2004

Fund Balances:

65,703

4,607

4,607

17,602

16,114

12

195

138,132

120,760

Appropriated Funds:
Congressional printing and binding

33,394

48,331

Salaries and expenses

7,992

19,978

Supplemental and other

27,193

4,949

68,579

73,258

$ 206,711

$ 194,018

$

$

N. Tax Status

Total appropriated funds

GPO is a legislative branch agency within the Federal Government, and therefore, is not subject to federal, state, or local
income taxes. Accordingly, no provisions for income taxes are recorded by the Agency.

Total

Status of Fund Balance with the U.S. Treasury:
Unobligated balance:
Available

43,159

34,356

Unavailable

27,193

4,949

Total

70,352

39,305

136,359

154,713

$ 206,711

$ 194,018

Obligated balance not yet disbursed
Total

Unrestricted funds are available to meet the ﬁnancial obligations of the Revolving Fund. Restricted funds are comprised
of customer deposit accounts, accrued wages and salaries, payroll taxes and other withholdings, earned annual leave not
used by employees, and amounts due to the Ofﬁce of Personnel Management (OPM) from the GPO Retirement Separation
Incentive Program (RSIP). These funds can only be used for the purpose speciﬁed.
Supplemental and other appropriations include unexpended appropriations made to the GPO for speciﬁc purposes as
discussed in Note 11B.
GPO provided the U.S. Census Monitoring Board (CMB), a former Federal entity, with administrative support services
for a fee between ﬁscal year 1998 and ﬁscal year 2001. The U.S. Department of the Treasury continues to maintain a fund
balance for the former CMB that is reported under GPO’s accounts. GPO does not include this amount in its consolidated
ﬁnancial statements because the appropriated funds are only available for obligations of the former CMB. The CMB fund
balance was $279,243 at both September 30, 2005 and September 30, 2004. GPO has requested the U.S. Department of the
Treasury to accept return of the CMB fund balance. The CMB account must remain dormant for at least two years before the
U.S. Department of the Treasury can close the account.
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3. Accounts Receivable

5. Property, Plant, and Equipment

Accounts receivable, net of an allowance for doubtful accounts, as of September 30, 2005 and 2004,
consisted of the following.
(Dollars in thousands)

Net property, plant, and equipment (PP&E) as of September 30, 2005 and 2004 consisted of the following.

2005

(Dollars in thousands)

2005

2004

Federal Agencies:

Land

Unbilled accounts receivable

$

Billed completed work
Subtotal

97,465

$ 127,083

7,314

20,354

104,779

147,437

Other receivables:
The public

1,702

1,204

GPO employees

875

814

Subtotal

2,577

2,018

107,356

149,455

Total accounts receivable
Allowance for doubtful accounts

(3,255)

Total accounts receivable, net

$ 104,101

9,971

$

9,971

Buildings and improvements

75,997

Plant machinery and equipment

73,448

74,976

Computers and computer software

29,247

29,814

6,156

6,015

Furniture and fixtures

75,617

Motor vehicles

633

740

Leasehold improvements

946

1,030

Construction and software in process

885

1,020

197,283

199,183

(141,111)

(139,985)

Total
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization

(4,866)
$ 144,589

$

2004

Net property, plant, and equipment

$

56,172

$

59,198

6. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses as of September 30, 2005 and 2004 were composed of the following.

The majority of GPO accounts receivable are due from other Federal agencies that ordered goods and services from GPO.
By law, these customers are required to reimburse the GPO Revolving Fund for the cost of their orders through a system of
rates and prices maintained by GPO.
Unbilled accounts receivable result from the delivery of goods and the performance of services for which bills have not
been presented to the customer for payment yet. Accordingly, unbilled accounts receivable includes the value of work in
process and completed work for customer orders as of September 30, 2005 and 2004.
Employee accounts receivable includes amounts owed by current and former employees who were advanced leave.
Employees generally repay their leave indebtedness through biweekly installments from their earned leave, or from leave
donations from other employees under the GPO Leave Donation Program.

(Dollars in thousands)

2005
Commercial printing
U.S. Government agencies
Other
Total accounts payable
Accrued salaries and payroll taxes

4. Inventories

Total accounts payable and accrued expenses

Inventories, net of an allowance for surplus and obsolete stock, as of September 30, 2005 and 2004, consisted of the
following.
(Dollars in thousands)

2005
Publications for sale

$

$

$ 43,379

$ 41,353

13,099

28,480

9,216

7,287

65,694

77,120

12,170

11,426

$ 77,864

$ 88,546

7. Deferred Revenues
As of September 30, 2005 and 2004, deferred revenues from customers consisted of the following.

7,202

(Dollars in thousands)

Paper

2,297

2,716

Materials and supplies

5,864

6,595

15,987

16,513

Deposit accounts

(6,933)

(7,615)

Subscriptions

8,898

Unfilled orders

260

941

Advance billings

660

2,185

Total

$ 54,742

$ 73,703

Total inventory
Less: Allowance for surplus and obsolete inventory
Inventories

30

7,826

2004

2004

Accounts payable:

$

9,054

$
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2005

2004

$ 50,042

$ 65,703

3,780

4,874
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GPO held $50.0 million and $65.7 million in customer deposit accounts as of September 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
Federal Government customers had advanced funds of $46.0 million and $61.4 million for printing and binding as of
September 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Additionally, Government and other customers had advanced funds of $4.0
million and $4.3 million for sales of publications as of September 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The restricted funds in
these deposit accounts will generally be applied to future orders placed by customers, or may be refunded upon request.
GPO defers the recognition of revenues for subscription services that will be provided to customers in the future.
Customers pay for subscriptions to the Congressional Record, the Federal Register, and other Federal Government publications
in advance of delivery by the Superintendent of Documents. The revenues from subscriptions will be recognized as these
periodicals are published and distributed to subscribers.
GPO also defers the recognition of revenues for unﬁlled orders of Federal Government publications and other information products. The revenue from these sales will be recognized when the Superintendent of Documents ﬁlls the customer’s
order. GPO will refund the payment to the customer in those instances where the publication is no longer available for sale.
Additionally, the Agency defers the recognition of revenues for advance billings to Federal Government customers.
Advance billings are occasionally used to ﬁnance the cost of producing certain large printing and binding jobs. GPO will
recognize the revenue as work is completed.

8. Workers’ Compensation Liability
The DOL develops an actuarial estimate of future workers’ compensation beneﬁts for each Federal entity to use for ﬁnancial
accounting and reporting each year. The U.S. Department of the Treasury requires Federal entities to use DOL’s estimates for
intra-governmental accounting of liabilities. The workers’ compensation liability estimate for GPO was about $76.1 million
as of September 30, 2005, and about $79.6 million as of September 30, 2004. Therefore, the accrued liability for workers’
compensation beneﬁts decreased by $3.5 million during the year ended September 30, 2005.
The DOL liability estimate includes the expected payments for death, disability, medical, and miscellaneous costs for
approved compensation cases, as well as a component for incurred but not reported claims. The liability is determined
using historical beneﬁt payment patterns related to speciﬁc incurred periods to predict the ultimate payments related to
those periods. The methodology provides for the effects of inﬂation and adjusts historical payments to current year constant
dollars by applying wage inﬂation factors (cost of living adjustments or COLA’s) and medical inﬂation factors (consumer
price index medical or CPIM’s) to the calculation of projected beneﬁts. The compensation COLA’s and CPIM’s used in the
projections for 2005 and 2004 were as follows.
COLA
Fiscal Year

CPIM

2005

2004

2005

2004

2005

2.20%

2.03%

4.33%

4.14%

2006

3.33%

2.73%

4.09%

3.96%

2007

2.93%

2.40%

4.01%

3.98%

2008

2.40%

2.40%

4.01%

3.99%

2009+

2.40%

2.40%

4.01%

4.02%

Projected annual payments were discounted to the present value based on the Ofﬁce of Management and Budget’s
(OMB) economic assumptions for 10-year Treasury notes and bonds. For 2005, interest rate assumptions were 4.528 percent in Year 1, and 5.020 percent in Year 2 and thereafter. For 2004, interest rate assumptions were 4.883 percent in Year 1,
and 5.235 percent in Year 2 and thereafter.
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9. Commitments
9. A. Operating Leases
As of September 30, 2005, GPO was committed to various non-cancelable operating leases, primarily covering warehouse
and ofﬁce space. Some of these leases contain escalation clauses and renewal options. A schedule of future minimum rental
payments required under operating leases by type, which have initial or remaining non-cancelable lease terms in excess of
one year, follows.
(Dollars in thousands)
Fiscal Year
2006

Warehouse
$

1,485

Office
$

481

Total
$ 1,966

2007

714

249

963

2008

449

122

571

2009

75

116

191

2010

-

119

119

2011 and beyond

-

10

10

2,723

$ 1,097

$ 3,820

Total minimum lease payments

$

Rent expenses were $3,334,000 and $3,889,000 for the years ended September 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. As discussed in Note 17, leased costs for warehouse space decreased as a result of GPO vacating a commercial building in Laurel,
MD (i.e., Laurel Building I) in which the lease expired in August 2004.

9. B. Commitments on Undelivered Orders
GPO regularly places orders to acquire goods and services from the private sector, and other sources. Some of these orders
are scheduled for delivery or performance in the next ﬁscal year. Total undelivered orders, including printing and binding
contractual commitments, for GPO at ﬁscal year-end were approximately $114.0 million and $111.1 million as of September 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

10. Contingencies
Administrative Proceedings, Legal Actions, and Claims
GPO is a party in various administrative proceedings, legal actions, and claims brought against the Federal Government by
employees, contractors, and other parties. The uncertainty involving the outcome of these pending matters will be determined when future events occur or fail to occur.
GPO did not record any liability for contingencies as of September 30, 2005. Management and legal counsel were of the
opinion that incurrence of a liability was not probable for any of these contingent matters. In some cases, legal matters relate to contractual arrangements GPO has entered into for goods and services procured on behalf of other Federal agencies.
The costs of administering, litigating, and resolving these actions are borne by the GPO Revolving Fund unless the costs can
be recovered from another Federal agency.
GPO recorded an estimated liability of $300,000 for contingencies at September 30, 2004. At the time, management
and legal counsel were of the opinion that incurrence of a liability was probable for one claim being administratively
adjudicated. This claim was subsequently settled for a total of $20,000 in ﬁscal year 2005. The settlement amount included
attorney’s fees and was paid from the Revolving Fund in ﬁscal year 2005.
Certain legal matters in which GPO is a named party may be administered and litigated by the U.S. Department of Justice (DOJ) on behalf of GPO, an agency of the U.S. Government. In these cases, amounts paid under any judgment, compromise settlement, or award are funded from the Judgment Fund administered by the U.S. Department of the Treasury (31
U.S.C. § 1304). The Judgment Fund paid a total of $625,000 and $36,000 on behalf of GPO for the years ended September
30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. These amounts are not reﬂected in GPO’s consolidated ﬁnancial statements.
Contingencies for litigation involving GPO where the risk of loss was reasonably possible were approximately $940,000
as of September 30, 2005, and approximately $600,000 as of September 30, 2004.
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11. Net Position

During ﬁscal year 2001, Congress authorized GPO to use $9.5 million from prior year Congressional Printing and Binding Appropriations to cover the cost of congressional work submitted but not completed. These funds were transferred to
the GPO Revolving Fund. At the end of ﬁscal year 2005, a balance of about $1.3 million of the $9.5 million was unexpended and available for future expenditures.
During ﬁscal year 2001, Congress also authorized GPO to use about $3.3 million from prior year Salaries and Expenses
Appropriations to pay for the printing and distribution of Federal Government publications selected by the depository
libraries. These funds were transferred to the GPO Revolving Fund. A balance of $1.3 million of the $3.3 million was available for future expenditures as of September 30, 2005.
In ﬁscal year 2001, Congress appropriated $6 million to replace the antiquated air-conditioning system and install
modern energy-efﬁcient lighting ﬁxtures in GPO buildings. Installation of the lighting ﬁxtures was completed in ﬁscal year
2003. Replacement of the air-conditioning system was completed in ﬁscal year 2004. GPO expended the entire appropriation amount.
In ﬁscal year 2002, Congress appropriated $4 million in Emergency Response Funds to GPO. These funds were provided to improve security and establish backup facilities to ensure continuity of key operations in the event of a National
emergency affecting the Washington, DC area. Approximately $58,000 of this appropriation was unexpended as of September 30, 2005.
In ﬁscal year 2004, Congress appropriated $10 million (before rescission of $59,000) to the GPO Revolving Fund for
Workforce Restructuring at the Agency. The $9,941,000 in available funds was used to ﬁnance the majority of costs for the
RSIP (see Note 16). GPO expended the entire appropriation amount in ﬁscal year 2004.
In ﬁscal year 2005, Congress authorized GPO to use $22 million of annual appropriations from prior ﬁscal years for the
development of a Digital Content Management System. The $22 million consisted of $14.6 million available from earlier
Congressional Printing and Binding Appropriations and $7.4 million available from earlier Salaries and Expense Appropriations. These funds were transferred to the GPO Revolving Fund. The entire balance of $22 million was available for future
expenditures as of September 30, 2005.
In ﬁscal year 2005, GPO transferred $2,465,000 from the prior year’s unexpended Salaries and Expense Appropriation
to the GPO Revolving Fund. The funds were advanced to the U.S. Department of the Interior (i.e., GovWorks) for improvements to GPO Access that were ordered in ﬁscal year 2004, but remain unexpended as of September 30, 2005.

11. A. Cumulative Results of Operations
Retained Earnings (deﬁcit) - Retained earnings (deﬁcit) include the net operating results of the GPO Revolving Fund, since its
inception, less transfers to other Federal agencies required by statute.
Invested Capital - Invested Capital represents Federal resources directly appropriated to GPO by Congress to invest in GPO
assets, namely land, buildings, equipment, and capital.
Below is a summary of the changes to the cumulative results of operations in the ﬁscal years ended September 30, 2005
and 2004.
(Dollars in thousands)
Retained Earnings
(accumulated deficit)

Cumulative Results of Operations
Balance at September 30, 2003

$ (19,562)

Net loss for fiscal year ended September 30, 2004

Invested Capital
$ 92,879

11,259

Balance at September 30, 2004

Balance at September 30, 2005

$

$

-

(8,303)

Net income for fiscal year ended September 30, 2005

Total
73,317
11,259

92,879

84,576

9,623

-

9,623

1,320

$ 92,879

$

94,199

11. B. Unexpended Appropriations

12. Appropriated Funds

The following table presents the unexpended appropriation balances from September 30, 2003 through September 30,
2005 for the appropriations made available to GPO.

12. A. Available Appropriations

(Dollars in thousands)
Revolving
Fund
Appropriation

Appropriations

Unexpended balance at September 30, 2003

$

10,243

Salaries and
Expenses
Appropriation

$

16,780

The total net appropriations made available to GPO, after rescissions, for ﬁscal years 2005 and 2004 were as follows.

Congressional
Printing and
Binding Appropriation

$

44,540

Total

$

(Dollars in thousands)

Appropriations received in FY 04

9,941

34,253

90,573

134,767

Appropriations expended in FY 04

(15,235)

(32,900)

(86,782)

(134,917)

4,949

18,133

48,331

71,413

Appropriations received in FY 05

-

31,697

88,090

119,787

Appropriations transfers in FY 05

24,483

(9,868)

(14,615)

Appropriations expended in FY 05

(2,239)

(34,164)

(88,412)

Unexpended balance at September 30, 2004

Unexpended balance at September 30, 2005

$

27,193

$

5,798

$

33,394

2005

71,563
Congressional printing and binding

$

Salaries and expenses
Retirement separation incentive program
Total available appropriations

$

2004

88,090

$

90,573

31,697

34,253

-

9,941

119,787

$ 134,767

(124,815)
$

66,385

As of September 30, 2005, GPO had obligated $33,394,000 of the unexpended appropriations available for Congressional Printing and Binding, and $5,798,000 of the unexpended appropriations available for Salaries and Expenses. This
$39,192,000 in obligations is based on the estimated cost of open orders as of September 30, 2005. The obligations totaled
$66,464,000 at September 30, 2004, and were comprised of $48,331,000 in obligations against unexpended appropriations
for Congressional Printing and Binding and $18,133,000 in obligations against unexpended appropriations for Salaries and
Expenses.
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13. Employee Beneﬁt Plans

12. B. Expended Appropriations
The total appropriations expended for GPO programs, operations, and other activities during ﬁscal years 2005 and 2004
were as follows.

(Dollars in thousands)

2005

2004

Congressional printing and binding:

Congressional Record products

$

24,669

$

20,452

Miscellaneous publications and printing and binding

24,269

19,399

Hearings

15,906

18,797

Bills, resolutions, and amendments

10,489

10,455

2,709

2,918

10,370

14,761

88,412

86,782

28,866

26,609

3,797

5,408

273

87

1,228

796

34,164

32,900

1,516

3,111

Details to Congress
Other
Total congressional printing and binding
Salaries and expenses:
Depository library distribution
Cataloging and indexing
By-law distribution
International exchange
Total salaries and expenses
Revolving fund:
Appropriation transfers
Homeland security

723

1,405

Air conditioning and lighting upgrade

-

778

Retirement separation incentive program

-

9,941

2,239

15,235

Total revolving fund
Total expended appropriations

$

124,815

$

134,917

$

124,815

$

134,917

Reconciliation of expended appropriations to the
consolidated statements of revenues and expenses:
Total expended appropriations
Eliminations (Intra-agency)

(1,684)

Consolidated revenues from appropriations

36

$

123,131

(3,451)
$

131,466
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GPO funds a portion of pension contributions for its employees under the Civil Service Retirement System (CSRS) and the
Federal Employees Retirement System (FERS), and also makes payroll deductions from employees for their pension contributions. The U.S. Ofﬁce of Personnel Management (OPM) determines the employer contributions for these deﬁned beneﬁt
plans that are required to be paid by GPO. OPM is responsible for Government-wide reporting of CSRS and FERS assets, accumulated plan beneﬁts, and unfunded liabilities. Therefore, GPO is not required to disclose the unfunded pension liability
and post-employment beneﬁts relative to its employees. GPO also administers a Transit Beneﬁt Program that provides a
monthly transit subsidy to eligible employees.
Civil Service Retirement System
The CSRS is a deﬁned beneﬁt plan that covers many of the Agency’s employees. Total GPO (employer) contributions to CSRS
for employees covered under this retirement program were 7.5 percent of basic pay in both ﬁscal years 2005 and 2004 for
investigators and law-enforcement ofﬁcers; and 7 percent of basic pay in both ﬁscal years for all other employees. GPO’s contributions were $4.8 million and $5.7 million for the ﬁscal years ended September 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
Federal Employees Retirement System
On January 1, 1987, FERS was created pursuant to Public Law 99-335. Using Social Security beneﬁts as a base, FERS
provides a deﬁned beneﬁt plan (Basic Beneﬁt Plan) and a voluntary deﬁned contribution plan. Employees ﬁrst hired after
December 31, 1983 were automatically covered by FERS and Social Security, while employees hired prior to January 1, 1984
were able to choose between joining this plan or remaining in CSRS. FERS also offers the Federal Government’s Thrift Savings Plan (TSP), which requires GPO to contribute 1 percent of an enrolled employee’s base pay, and to match voluntary
employee contributions of up to 4 percent of base pay. Employees participating in CSRS may contribute to the TSP, but they
do not receive any matching contributions from the Agency.
The employer contribution rates to FERS for GPO law enforcement ofﬁcers were 23.8 percent and 22.7 percent of basic
pay during ﬁscal years 2005 and 2004, respectively. The FERS contribution rates for all other employees were 11.2 percent
and 10.7 percent, respectively. GPO contributions to FERS totaled $8.4 million for ﬁscal year 2005 and $7.4 million for ﬁscal year 2004. GPO contributions to TSP for ﬁscal year 2005 and 2004 were $3.0 million and $2.8 million, respectively.
Social Security System
As an employer, GPO matches employee contributions to the U.S. Social Security Administration (SSA) under the Federal
Insurance Contributions Act (FICA) for employees in the FERS. GPO contributes matching amounts of 6.2 percent of gross
pay (up to $90,000 in 2005 and $87,900 in 2004) to SSA’s Old Age, Survivors, and Disability Insurance (OASDI) Program.
Additionally, GPO makes matching contributions for all employees of 1.45 percent of gross pay, without limit, to SSA’s
Medicare Hospital Insurance Program. Contributions to these SSA programs for the years ended September 30, 2005 and
2004 totaled $7.2 million and $7.1 million, respectively.
Pension and Other Post-Employment Beneﬁts Provided by Others
OPM is responsible for the management, administration, and funding of certain Government-wide programs that provide
pension and other post-employment beneﬁts to retired employees of the Federal Government. These OPM administered
programs provide beneﬁts to former employees of GPO. OPM administered pension programs include the CSRS and the
FERS. Other OPM administered programs provide health, life, and long-term care insurance beneﬁts to active, inactive, and
retired employees. Permanent employees of GPO may participate in the Federal Employees Health Beneﬁt Program (FEHBP), Federal Employee Group Life Insurance Program (FEGLIP), and/or Federal Long Term Insurance Program (FLTCIP)
before and after their retirement from the Agency.
The FASAB’s, Statement of Federal Financial Accounting Standards (SFFAS) No. 5, Accounting for Liabilities of the Federal
Government, requires agencies that follow Federal accounting standards to recognize their share of the normal cost of pension and other post-employment beneﬁts provided by others, such as OPM. To the extent that normal costs exceed current contributions, the standard requires that an additional expense be recognized by the employing agency for the future
estimated cost of post-employment beneﬁts not currently funded. SFFAS No. 5 also requires that the estimated expense
amount be offset by an equal amount of imputed ﬁnancing. OPM, which is responsible for these programs, represents the
source of imputed ﬁnancing for the post-employment beneﬁts.
As allowed by the FASAB, GPO has historically elected to prepare its ﬁnancial statements on the basis of GAAP for commercial enterprises, and accordingly has reﬂected only the current cost of these programs in its ﬁnancial statements since
OPM is responsible for funding the normal cost component.
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Transit Beneﬁts
In January 2001, GPO established the Transit Beneﬁt Program to promote the use of public transportation by employees
for commuting to and from the workplace. This program conserves energy resources and reduces urban congestion. The
maximum tax-free monthly subsidy to an eligible employee was $105 for 2005 and $100 for 2004. Transit beneﬁts paid to
employees for the years ended September 30, 2005 and 2004 totaled $858,000 and $875,000, respectively.

14. Concentration of Credit Risk
GPO ﬁnancial instruments, none of which are held for trading purposes, consist primarily of funds with the U.S. Treasury,
accounts receivable, and accounts payable at September 30, 2005 and 2004. GPO estimates the fair value of ﬁnancial instruments at September 30, 2005 and 2004 to be the carrying value.

15. Major Customers
GPO’s primary customers are the Congress and large Federal agencies in the Executive Branch of the Federal Government. In
ﬁscal years 2005 and 2004, respectively, revenues from those customers representing 10 percent or more of GPO’s operating
revenues follow.
(Dollars in thousands)

2005

2004

Amount

Percent

$ 136,858

19.5%

100,789

14.3%

82,596

11.9%

Congress of the United States

89,841

12.8%

88,841

12.8%

Department of the Treasury

75,903

10.8%

81,645

11.8%

Department of Defense
Department of Health & Human Services

Amount
$

112,028

Percent
16.2%

16. Retirement Separation Incentive Program
In April 2003, the Public Printer established the Retirement Separation Incentive Program (RSIP) under authority of Public
Law 105-275 to help restructure the workforce. The RSIP permitted incentive payments of up to $25,000 per employee
for voluntary separation. This major cost reduction initiative was needed to help stem the trend in operating losses that
occurred as the demand for traditional printing declined.
The RSIP reduced the workforce by 542 employees and avoided estimated personnel costs and beneﬁts of $38 million
per year. The estimated cost of the RSIP was $18 million. Congress appropriated $9,941,000 to the GPO Revolving Fund in
ﬁscal year 2004 to help ﬁnance the workforce restructuring. The RSIP was implemented in two parts generally corresponding to the two ﬁscal years in which the program was employed. The following chart summarizes the costs and beneﬁts of
the RSIP.

17. Regional Operation Closings and Consolidations
GPO employed regional operation closings and consolidations to right-size operations and reduce unnecessary operating costs during ﬁscal years 2004 and 2005. The general downward trend in customer demand for traditional printing has
reduced operating revenues for all major programs. Accordingly, program managers have been evaluating their programs in
an effort to identify opportunities to improve the economy, efﬁciency, and effectiveness of their operations.
During ﬁscal year 2004, GPO completed a major warehouse space consolidation that started in ﬁscal year 2003. This
management initiative signiﬁcantly reduced the Agency’s requirements for leased space at a warehouse facility in Laurel,
MD. The GPO warehouse consisted of two adjacent buildings. Building I and most of Building II were being used by the
Superintendent of Documents primarily for the Sales of Publications Program. Building II was also being used by Production Operations for the storage of equipment, paper, and supplies. First, Plant Operations closed their paper storage operations in the Laurel facility during ﬁscal year 2003. Second, the Superintendent of Documents completed a consolidation of
their warehouse and distribution operations in Building II in ﬁscal year 2004. GPO accrued one-time termination costs of
$614,000 for the operating lease for Building I, and $150,000 for site restoration as of September 30, 2003. The lease for the
vacated building space expired in August 2004. The costs associated with closing Building II were reﬂected in the operating
expenses in the statement of revenues and expenses for ﬁscal year 2003.
During ﬁscal year 2004, Customer Services closed the last GPO Regional Printing Plant in Denver, CO. As of September
30, 2004, GPO accrued one-time estimated termination costs of $145,000 for severance pay, $65,000 for building lease
payments, and $200,000 for leased operating equipment. The costs associated with the closing of the Denver Regional
Printing Plant are reﬂected in the operating expenses in the statement of revenues and expenses for ﬁscal year 2004.
During ﬁscal year 2005, Customer Services closed GPO’s Los Angeles Regional Printing Procurement Ofﬁce, St. Louis
Regional Printing Procurement Ofﬁce, and New Orleans Satellite Printing Procurement Ofﬁce. Their customer service responsibilities were assigned to other GPO regional ofﬁces. Additionally, the operations of the GPO’s Rapid Response Center
at the Navy Yard in Washington, DC, were relocated from GSA managed space to GPO owned space at Central Ofﬁce. GPO
accrued one-time estimated termination costs of $312,000 for severance pay and $4,000 for lease payments to GSA for the
vacated building space. The costs associated with the closing of these procurement ofﬁces are reﬂected in the operating
expenses in the statement of revenues and expenses for ﬁscal year 2005.

18. Goal Sharing Program
The GPO Goal Sharing Program is an incentive award program designed to reward employees for their efforts to achieve
agency goals that produce measurable cost savings. Employees may receive 50 percent of the cost savings, or paid time off.
Fiscal Year 2005 was the ﬁrst year of this new award program. Estimated costs of $445,000 were accrued for Goal Sharing
awards during ﬁscal year 2005. Awards will be given to eligible employees in ﬁscal year 2006.

(Dollars in thousands)
RSIP

Employee Separations

Estimated One-Time Costs

Estimated Annual Savings

Part 1 - FY 2003

312

$ 10,410

$ 21,747

Part 2 - FY 2004

230

7,628

16,271

542

$ 18,038

$ 38,018

Total

The RSIP costs of $18 million include almost $4.6 million payable to OPM for early retirement contributions required by
statute. The OPM contributions were unpaid at September 30, 2005.
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Consolidating Balance Sheet by Fund Type

Consolidating
and
Supplemental
Schedules

As of September 30, 2005

(Unaudited)

Assets

(Dollars in thousands)
(Unaudited)
Revolving Fund
Printing
and Binding
Operations

General Fund

Sales of
Publications
Operations

Congressional
Salaries and
Printing
Expenses
and Binding
Appropriation Appropriation

Total
Before
Eliminations

Eliminations

Consolidated

CURRENT ASSETS
Funds with the U.S. Treasury
Accounts receivable, net

$ 158,039

$ 7,286

$ 7,992

$ 33,394

$ 206,711 $

- $ 206,711

195,309

1,066

300

-

196,675

(92,574)

104,101

Inventories:
Publications for sale, net

-

2,852

-

-

2,852

-

2,852

Paper

2,297

-

-

-

2,297

-

2,297

Materials and supplies, net

3,905

-

-

-

3,905

-

3,905

Total inventories, net

6,202

2,852

3,313

-

-

-

3,313

-

3,313

362,863

11,204

8,292

33,394

415,753

(92,574)

323,179

9,971

-

-

-

9,971

-

9,971

Buildings and improvements

75,997

-

-

-

75,997

-

75,997

Plant machinery and equipment

73,448

-

-

-

73,448

-

73,448

Computers and computer software

29,247

-

-

-

29,247

-

29,247

6,156

-

-

-

6,156

-

6,156

Motor vehicles

633

-

-

-

633

-

633

Leasehold improvements

946

-

-

-

946

-

946

Construction and software in process

885

-

-

-

885

-

885

197,283

-

-

-

197,283

-

197,283

(141,111)

-

-

-

(141,111)

-

(141,111)

56,172

-

-

-

56,172

-

56,172

$ 419,035

$ 11,204

$ 8,292

$ 33,394

Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

9,054

9,054

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
Land

Furniture and fixtures

Less: Accumulated depreciation and
amortization
Property, plant, and equipment, net
Total assets

$ 471,925 $ (92,574) $ 379,351

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Consolidating Balance Sheet by Fund Type

Consolidating Schedule of Revenues and Expenses by Fund Type

As of September 30, 2005

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2005

(Dollars in thousands)

(Dollars in thousands)

(Unaudited)

(Unaudited)
Revolving Fund

Liabilities and Net Position

Printing
and Binding
Operations

General Fund

Sales of
Publications
Operations

Revolving Fund

Congressional
Salaries and
Printing
Expenses
and Binding
Appropriation Appropriation

Total
Before
Eliminations

Eliminations

Consolidated

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Printing
and Binding
Operations

Sales of
Publications
Operations

Congressional
Salaries and
Printing
Expenses
and Binding
Appropriation Appropriation

Total
Before
Eliminations

Eliminations

Consolidated

OPERATING REVENUES
$ 78,199 $ 89,745

$ 2,494 $

- $ 170,438

$(92,574) $ 77,864

Printing and Binding

Deferred revenue

46,708

8,034

-

-

54,742

-

54,742

Sales of Publications

Accrued annual leave

10,039

-

-

-

10,039

-

10,039

Appropriations

134,946

97,779

2,494

-

235,219

Total current liabilities

General Fund

(92,574)

142,645

$ 657,328

$

-

$

-

$

-

$657,328

$(105,205) $ 552,123

-

22,560

-

-

22,560

2,239

-

34,164

88,412

124,815

-

4,851

-

-

4,851

659,567

27,411

34,164

88,412

809,554

(106,889)

702,665

Printing and reproduction

422,959

249

10,275

88,412

521,895

(105,949)

415,946

Personnel compensation and benefits

Reimbursements
Total operating revenues

(1,684)
-

22,560
123,131
4,851

OTHER LIABILITIES
Workers’ compensation liability
Total liabilities

76,122

-

-

-

76,122

211,068

97,779

2,494

-

311,341

(92,574)

76,122
218,767

NET POSITION
Cumulative results of operations:
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit)

90,484

(89,164)

-

-

1,320

-

1,320

Invested capital

90,290

2,589

-

-

92,879

-

92,879

27,193

-

5,798

33,394

66,385

-

66,385

207,967

(86,575)

5,798

33,394

160,584

-

160,584

Unexpended appropriations
TOTAL net position (deficit)
Total liabilities and total net position

$ 419,035 $ 11,204

$ 8,292 $ 33,394 $ 471,925

$(92,574)

$379,351

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.

OPERATING EXPENSES
164,553

14,891

17,847

-

197,291

(572)

196,719

Supplies and materials

30,421

669

848

-

31,938

(38)

31,900

Rents, communications, and utilities

11,968

6,230

1,209

-

19,407

(89)

19,318

-

7,014

-

-

7,014

Depreciation and amortization

7,323

247

90

-

7,660

Other services

9,955

631

2,640

-

13,226

Publications sold

Surplus publications

(241)

7,014
7,660
12,985

-

1,962

-

-

1,962

-

1,962

1,298

466

1,255

-

3,019

-

3,019

Total operating expenses

648,477

32,359

34,164

88,412

803,412

Income (loss) before
other operating expenses

11,090

(4,948)

-

-

6,142

-

6,142

-

-

3,481

-

3,481

-

$ 9,623 $

-

$ 9,623

Travel and transportation

(106,889)

696,523

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Decrease in workers’
compensation liabilities

3,481

Net Income (loss)

$ 14,571

$ (4,948)

$

-

$

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Consolidating Schedule of Cash Flow by Fund Type

Supplemental Schedule of Appropriated Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2005

For the Fiscal Years, Ended September 30, 2005 and 2004

(Dollars in thousands)

(Dollars in thousands)

(Unaudited)

(Unaudited)
Revolving Fund
Printing
and Binding
Operations

General Fund

Sales of
Publications
Operations

Congressional
Salaries and
Printing
Expenses
and Binding
Appropriation Appropriation

Total
Before
Eliminations

Revolving Fund
Appropriation
Eliminations

Consolidated

CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income (loss)

$ 14,570

$ (4,947)

$

-

$

-

$

9,623

$

-

$ 9,623

Depreciation and amortization

7,660

-

-

-

-

-

-

7,660

-

7,660

Gain on disposal of property, plant,
and equipment

(24)

(24)

-

(24)

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Inventories
Prepaid expenses

32,279

(340)

(276)

-

31,663

8,826

40,488

(185)

29

-

-

(156)

-

(156)

(2,881)

-

-

-

(2,881)

-

(2,881)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

(10,175)

7,691

Deferred revenue

(16,845)

(2,116)

Workers’ compensation liability
Total adjustments

745

-

(3,481)

626

-

(1,859)

-

-

(18,961)

-

-

(8,826)
-

745

-

(10,684)
(18,961)
745

-

-

-

(3,481)

-

(3,481)

7,093

5,264

350

-

12,706

-

12,706

21,663

317

350

-

22,329

-

22,329

(4,758)

-

(4,758)

2004

4,949

$

19,978

$

48,331

$ 73,258

$ 80,062

-

31,697

88,090

119,787

134,767

4,949

51,675

136,421

193,045

214,829

Funds Applied:
Obligated appropriationsCurrent year

-

24,956

64,956

89,912

91,880

2,239

8,859

23,456

34,554

49,691

2,239

33,815

88,412

124,466

141,571

Appropriation Transfers

24,483

(9,868)

(14,615)

-

-

Unexpended Appropriations,
end of year (on cash basis)

27,193

7,992

33,394

68,579

73,258

Intra-agency accounts receivable

-

300

-

300

23

Intra-agency accounts payable

-

Prior years
Total funds applied

Increase (decrease) in liabilities-

Accrued annual leave

$

Appropriations

(Increase) decrease in assetsAccounts receivable

Total
2005

Funds Provided:
Total funds available

cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Congressional
Printing and Binding
Appropriation

Unexpended Appropriations,
beginning of year (on cash basis)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net

Salaries
and Expenses
Appropriation

Adjustments:

Unexpended Appropriations,
end of year (on accrual basis)

$

27,193

(2,494)
$

5,798

$

33,394

(2,494)
$ 66,386

(1,868)
$ 71,413

Net cash provided by operating
activities

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

(4,758)

-

-

-

-

-

-

(4,608)

-

-

-

22,244

-

(12,335)

22,244

-

150

150

-

150

(4,608)

-

(4,608)

(14,937)

(5,028)

-

(5,028)

(12,335)

(14,937)

(5,028)

-

(5,028)

(11,985)

(14,937)

12,693

-

12,693

19,977

48,331

194,018

-

194,018

$ 7,992 $ 33,394

$ 206,711

-

$206,711

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase (decrease) in unexpended appropriations
Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in fund
39,299

317

Fund balance with the U.S. Treasury, beginning of year

balance with the U.S. Treasury

118,740

6,969

Fund balance with the U.S. Treasury, end of year

$ 158,039

$

7,286

$

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Section IV: Consolidating and Supplemental Schedules (unaudited)

Section IV: Consolidating and Supplemental Schedules (unaudited)

Supplemental Schedule of Balance Sheets for Revolving Fund
As of September 30, 2005 and 2004
(Dollars in thousands)
(Unaudited)
Printing and Binding
Operations

2005

Sales of Publications
Operations

2004

2005

Total Revolving Fund
2005

2004

ASSETS

Total Revolving Fund
2004

Before
Eliminations

Eliminations

Consolidated

Before
Eliminations

Eliminations

Consolidated

$

$

$

$

$

$

CURRENT ASSETS
Fund balance with the U.S. Treasury

$ 158,039

$ 118,741

7,286

$ 6,968

195,309

227,587

1,066

726

196,375

Inventories, net

6,202

6,017

2,852

2,881

9,054

Prepaid expenses

3,313

432

-

-

3,313

362,863

352,777

11,204

10,575

374,067

Accounts receivable, net

Total current assets

$

165,325

(92,574)

165,325

125,709

-

103,801

228,313

-

9,054

8,898

-

-

3,313

432

-

281,493

363,352

(92,574)

(83,748)

125,709
144,565
8,898
432

(83,748)

279,604

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
9,971

9,971

-

-

9,971

-

9,971

9,971

-

9,971

Buildings and improvements

Land

75,997

75,617

-

-

75,997

-

75,997

75,617

-

75,617

Plant machinery and equipment

73,448

74,976

-

-

73,448

-

73,448

74,976

-

74,976

Computers and computer software

29,247

29,814

-

-

29,247

-

29,247

29,814

-

29,814

6,156

6,015

-

-

6,156

-

6,156

6,015

-

6,015

Motor vehicles

633

740

-

-

633

-

633

740

-

740

Leasehold improvements

946

1,030

-

-

946

-

946

1,030

-

1,030

Furniture and fixtures

Construction and software in process

885

1,020

-

-

885

-

885

1,020

-

1,020

197,283

199,183

-

-

197,283

-

197,283

199,183

-

199,183

(141,111)

(139,985)

-

-

(141,111)

-

(141,111)

(139,985)

-

(139,985)

56,172

59,198

-

-

56,172

-

59,172

59,198

-

59,198

$ 419,035

$ 411,975

$ 11,204

$ 10,575

Less: Accumulated depreciation and
amortization
Property, plant, and equipment, net
Total assets

$

430,239

$

(92,574)

$

337,665

$

422,550

$

(83,748)

$

338,802

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Section IV: Consolidating and Supplemental Schedules (unaudited)

Section IV: Consolidating and Supplemental Schedules (unaudited)

Supplemental Schedule of Balance Sheets for Revolving Fund
As of September 30, 2005 and 2004
(Dollars in thousands)
(Unaudited)
Printing and Binding
Operations

2005

Sales of Publications
Operations

2004

2005

Total Revolving Fund
2005

2004

Before
Eliminations

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

Eliminations

Total Revolving Fund
2004

Consolidated

Before
Eliminations

Eliminations

Consolidated

$

$

$

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

89,745

$ 82,051

Deferred revenue

$

46,708

63,552

8,034

10,151

54,742

-

54,742

73,703

-

73,703

Accrued annual leave

10,039

9,294

-

-

10,039

-

10,039

9,294

-

9,294

134,946

161,221

97,779

92,202

232,725

140,151

253,423

(83,748)

169,675

76,122

79,603

-

-

76,122

-

76,122

79,603

-

79,603

76,122

79,603

-

-

76,122

-

76,122

79,603

-

79,603

211,068

240,824

97,779

92,202

308,847

216,273

333,026

(83,748)

249,278

Total current liabilities

78,199

$

88,375

$

$

167,944

$

(92,574)

$

(92,574)

75,370

170,426

(83,748)

86,678

OTHER LIABILITIES
Workers’ compensation liability
Total other liabilities
Total liabilities

(92,574)

NET POSITION
Cumulative results of operations:
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit)

90,484

75,913

(89,164)

(84,216)

1,320

-

1,320

(8,303)

-

(8,303)

Invested capital

90,290

90,290

2,589

2,589

92,879

-

92,879

92,879

-

92,879

Unexpended appropriations

27,193

4,948

-

-

27,193

-

27,193

4,948

-

4,948

207,967

171,151

(86,575)

121,392

-

121,392

89,524

-

89,524

419,035

$ 411,975

Total net position
Total liabilities and total net position

$

$

11,204

(81,627)
$ 10,575

$

430,239

$

(92,574)

$

337,665

$

422,550

$

(83,748)

$

338,802

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Section IV: Consolidating and Supplemental Schedules (unaudited)

Section IV: Consolidating and Supplemental Schedules (unaudited)

Consolidating Schedule of Income (Loss)
before Other Operating Expenses by Major Program
For the Fiscal Years, Ended September 30, 2005 and 2004
(Dollars in thousands)
(Unaudited)
Printing
and Binding
Operations
2005

Information
Dissemination
Operations

2004

2005

Congressional
Printing
and Binding

2004

2005

Total GPO
Before Eliminations

Other Operations

2004

2005

2004

2005

Eliminations

2004

2005

Total GPO

2004

2005

2004

REVENUES:
Printing and binding

$ 644,380

$ 623,042

Sales of blank paper

8,963

9,813

-

-

-

-

700

810

-

-

-

-

-

-

22,560

24,024

-

-

1,516

3,111

34,164

32,900

88,412

-

-

4,851

5,022

655,559

636,776

61,575

422,959

406,638

162,425

Sales of waste and scrap
Sales of publications
Appropriations
Reimbursements
Total revenues

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$ 3,285

$

1,270

$ 647,665

$

624,312

$ (105,205)

$ (103,693)

$ 542,460

$ 520,619

-

-

8,963

9,813

-

-

-

700

810

-

-

8,963

9,813

-

700

-

-

22,560

24,024

-

-

810

22,560

24,024

86,782

723

12,124

124,815

134,917

123,131

131,466

-

-

-

-

4,851

5,022

4,851

5,022

61,946

88,412

86,782

4,008

13,394

809,554

798,898

(106,889)

(107,144)

702,665

691,754

10,524

11,848

88,412

86,782

-

-

521,895

505,268

(105,949)

(104,776)

415,946

400,492

161,872

32,738

36,686

-

-

2,128

667

197,291

199,225

(572)

(1,579)

196,719

197,646

-

-

-

354

-

-

-

7,274

-

7,628

-

7,628

30,088

30,555

1,517

1,635

-

-

333

276

31,938

32,466

(38)

(99)

31,900

32,367

11,479

11,660

7,439

9,852

-

-

489

799

19,407

22,311

(89)

-

-

7,014

6,146

-

-

-

-

7,014

6,146

(226)

19,318

22,085

7,014

6,146

(1,684)

(3,451)

-

-

EXPENSES:
Printing and reproduction
Personnel compensation
and benefit
Retirement separation
incentive program
Supplies and materials

-

-

Rents, communications,
and utilities
Publications sold
Depreciation and amortization

7,276

7,083

337

497

-

-

47

42

7,660

7,622

Other services

9,708

9,421

3,271

2,473

-

-

247

474

13,226

12,368

Surplus publications
Travel and transportation
Total expenses

-

-

-

-

(241)

(464)

7,660

7,622

12,985

11,904

-

-

1,962

108

-

-

-

-

1,962

108

-

-

1,962

108

1,296

2,303

1,721

2,118

-

-

2

5

3,019

4,426

-

-

3,019

4,426

645,231

629,532

66,523

71,717

88,412

86,782

3,246

9,537

803,412

797,568

696,523

690,424

10,328

$ 7,244

(106,889)

(107,144)

INCOME (LOSS) before
Other Operating Expenses

$

$ (4,948)

$ (9,771)

$

-

$

-

$

762

$

3,857

$

6,142

$

1,330

$

-

$

-

$

6,142

$

1,330

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.

50

UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE Financial Year in Review — Fiscal Years 2005 and 2004

UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE Financial Year in Review — Fiscal Years 2005 and 2004

51

Section IV: Consolidating and Supplemental Schedules (unaudited)

Section IV: Consolidating and Supplemental Schedules (unaudited)

Supplemental Schedule of Income (Loss)
before Other Operating Expenses for Printing and Binding Operations
For the Fiscal Years, Ended September 30, 2005 and 2004
(Dollars in thousands)
(Unaudited)
Total In-House Printing
Plant Printing Operations
2005

2004

Customer Services

Total Printing and Binding Operations

Digital Media
2005

2004

Percent of
Revenues

2005

Percent of
Revenues

2004

Percent of
Revenues

2005

Percent of
Revenues

2004

2005

Percent of
Revenues

2004

Percent of
Revenues

REVENUES:
Printing and binding

$ 169,392

$ 173,967

$ 1,597

Sales of blank paper

8,963

9,813

700

810

1,516

Sales of waste and scrap
Appropriations
Total revenues

$

-

$ 170,989

94

$173,967

93

$ 473,391

100

$ 449,075

100

$ 644,380

98

$ 623,042

98

-

-

8,963

5

9,813

5

-

-

-

-

8,963

1

9,813

1

-

-

700

-

810

-

-

-

-

-

700

-

810

-

3,111

-

-

1,516

1

3,111

2

-

-

-

-

1,516

1

3,111

1

180,571

187,701

1,597

-

182,168

100

187,701

100

473,391

100

449,075

100

655,559

100

636,776

100

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

422,959

90

406,638

91

422,959

64

406,638

65

109,749

129,709

1,368

-

111,117

61

129,709

69

51,308

11

32,163

7

162,425

25

161,872

25

27,690

29,543

686

-

28,376

16

29,543

16

1,712

-

1,012

-

30,088

5

30,555

5

EXPENSES:
Printing and reproduction
Personnel compensation
and benefits
Supplies and materials
Rents, communications, and
5,812

6,628

(130)

-

5,682

3

6,628

4

5,797

1

5,032

1

11,479

2

11,660

2

Depreciation and amortization

utilities

6,142

6,205

11

-

6,153

3

6,205

3

1,123

-

878

-

7,276

1

7,083

1

Other services

7,160

6,023

(127)

-

7,033

4

6,023

3

2,675

1

3,398

1

9,708

1

9,421

1

270

1,295

-

-

270

-

1,295

1

1,026

-

1,008

-

1,296

-

2,303

-

156,823

179,403

1,808

-

158,631

87

179,403

96

486,600

103

450,129

100

645,231

98

629,532

99

-

$ 23,537

13

8,298

4

$ (13,209)

(3)

$ (1,054)

10,328

2

Travel and transportation
Total expenses

INCOME (LOSS) before
Other Operating Expenses

$

23,748

$

8,298

$ (211)

$

$

-

$

$

7,244

1

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Section IV: Consolidating and Supplemental Schedules (unaudited)

Section IV: Consolidating and Supplemental Schedules (unaudited)

Supplemental Schedule of Income (Loss)
before Other Operating Expenses for Information Dissemination
For the Fiscal Years, Ended September 30, 2005 and 2004
(Dollars in thousands)
(Unaudited)
Sales of Publications Program
Percent of
Revenues

2005

Agency Distribution Services

Percent of
Revenues

2004

Percent of
Revenues

2005

Salaries and Expenses Programs
Percent of
Revenues

2004

Percent of
Revenues

2005

Total Information Dissemination
Percent of
Revenues

2004

Percent of
Revenues

2005

2004

Percent of
Revenues

REVENUES:
$ 22,560

100

$ 24,024

100

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

$ 22,560

37

$ 24,024

49

Appropriations

Sales of publications

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

34,164

100

32,900

100

34,164

55

32,900

44

Reimbursements

-

-

-

-

4,851

100

5,022

100

-

-

-

-

4,851

8

5,022

7

22,560

100

24,024

100

4,851

100

5,022

100

34,164

100

32,900

100

61,575

100

61,946

100

99

-

80

-

150

3

116

2

10,275

30

11,652

35

10,524

18

11,848

19

11,108

49

17,429

74

3,783

78

3,448

68

17,847

51

15,809

48

32,738

54

36,686

59

Total revenues

$

$

$

$

EXPENSES:
Printing and reproduction
Personnel compensation and
benefits
Retirement separation
incentive program
Supplies and materials

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

354

1

-

-

354

1

532

2

579

2

137

3

149

3

848

2

907

3

1,517

2

1,635

3

4,742

21

7,076

29

1,488

31

1,344

27

1,209

4

1,432

4

7,439

12

9,852

16

Rents, communications, and
utilities
Publications sold

7,014

31

6,146

26

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

7,014

11

6,146

10

Depreciation and amortization

177

1

252

1

70

1

64

1

90

-

181

1

337

-

497

1

Other services

408

2

1,044

4

223

5

189

4

2,640

8

1,240

4

3,271

5

2,473

4

1,962

9

108

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,962

3

108

-

372

2

509

2

94

2

284

6

1,255

5

1,325

4

1,721

3

2,118

3

26,414

117

33,223

138

5,945

123

5,594

111

34,164

100

32,900

100

66,523

108

71,717

116

(3,854)

(17)

(23)

$ (572)

(11)

-

-

-

-

(9,771)

(16)

Surplus publications
Travel and transportation
Total expenses
INCOME (LOSS) before
Other Operating Expenses

$

$ (9,199)

(38)

$ (1,094)

$

$

$

$ (4,948)

(8)

$

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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